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Investment Objective

Baronsmead VCT 3 i1s a tax efficient listed company which

aims to achieve long-term investment returns for private

investors.

Investment Policy

e Toinvest pnimarily n a diverse portfolio of UK
growth businesses, whether unquoted or traded
on AIM

e Investments are made selectively across a range
of sectors in comparues that have the potential to
grow and enhance their value

Full details of the Company’s published mvestment
peolicy and nsk management are contained 1n the
Report of the Directors on pages 18 to 20

Dividend policy

The Board of Baronsmead VCT 3 has the objective

to maintain a mimmum annual dvidend level of
around 4 5p per ordmary share if possible, but this
depends prumarily on the level of reahsations achueved
and cannot be guaranteed There will be vanahons

in the amount of dividends paid year on year Since
launch, the average annual tax-free dividend paid

to shareholders has been 5 75p per ordinary share
{equivalent to a pre-tax return of 7 65p per ordinary
share for a higher rate taxpayer) For shareholders
who received up front tax relefs, their returns would
have been higher
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Secondary market in the shares of Baronsmead VCT 3

The exasting shares of the Company are histed on the London Stock Exchange and can be bought and sold using a

stockbroker mn the same way as shares of any other listed company

Qua ng investors* who invest in the exasting shares of the Company can benefit from
g g pany

¢ Tax free dividends

+ No mmmum holding period

Realised gams not subject to capital gains tax (although any reahsed losses are not allowable)

¢ No need to mclude VCT dividends 1n annual tax returns
The UK tax treatment of VCTs 1s on a first in first out basis and therefore tax advice should be obtained before

shareholders dispose of their shares and also if they deferred a capital gain in respect of new shares acquired

prior to 6 Apnl 2004

* UK income tax payers, aged 18 or over, who acquire no more than E200,000 worth of VCT shares in a tax year

www.baronsmeadvct3.co.uk

if you have seld or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Baronsmead VCT 3 plc, please forward this decument and the accompanying form of
proxy as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was, or is

belng, effected, for delivery to the purchaser or transferes







Financial Headlines

5.5%
7.0p
189.7p

8.2%
63.3p

Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per share increased 5 5 per cent during
the year to 107 66p before deduction of dividends

Dividends for the year totalled 7 5p per share

NAV total return to shareholders for every 100.0p mnvested
since launch

Dividend yield Based on the 7 5p dividends pard m the year

and the mid share price of 91 25p at the year end, qualifying
shareholders have recerved a tax free cash return of 8 2 per cent ,
ignoring up front tax relief

Cumulative tax free dividends total 63 3p per share for founder
shareholders since 2001, equivalent to an annual average
dividend of 5 75p per share
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Summary Since Launch

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc

Net asset value total return and share pnice total return since launch against the FTSE All-Share Index total return

AIC methodology The KAV total return to the investor, including the onginal amount invested (rebased to 100p) from launch, assuming that dividends paid

were re-invested at the NAV of the Company at the ume the shares were quoted ex dividend Transaction costs are not taken Into account

Performance Summary to 31 December 2011

T year 3 years 5 years 10 years Since taunch
Total return* * % % * *
Net asset valuer +53 +26 9 +H121 +875 +8% 7
Share pricet +47 +28 9 +140 +87 4 +66 5
FTSE All Share -35 +43 9 +612 +59 5 +36 1
* Source ISIS EP LLP and AIC
T These returns for BVCT 3 ignore up front tax reliefs and the impact of receiving dividends tax free
Performance Record
Ordinary share
FTSE
Total Share Net asset All-Share Total
net Net asset price value total expense
Year ended assets value (mud) total return* return ratiot
31 December £m p p p p %
2001 311 93 85 88 00 101 21 8514 29
002 321 94 85 85 50 105 35 65 83 33
2003 330 97 15 90 00 112 65 79 56 3
2004 351 106 38 92 50 125 64 89 77 35
2005 562 117 31 100 50 144 77 109 56 35
2006 665 130 77 116 5o 169 27 127 N 34
2007 65 2 120 44 111 50 170 56 134 7 34
2008 551 102 72 90 5o 149 56 94 61 30
2009 52 ¢ 97 50 86 25 159 89 123 N 31
2010 64 6 106 60 94 25 180 19 140 97 30
2011 601 10016 91 25 189 74 136 10 30

* Source ISIS EP LLP

t As a percentage of average total shareholders’ funds (excluding perfermance fee)




Summary Since Launch

Dividends Paid Since Launch

Ordinary share

Total Average

Revenue Capital annual Cumulative total annual

Year ended dividend dividend dividend dividends dividend
31 December P p p p p
2001 230 - 230 2 30 230
2002 28 - 280 510 255
2003 220 200 4.20 9 30 310
2004 120 330 450 13 80 3 45
2005 200 350 5.50 19 30 386
2006 175 475 6.50 25 80 4 30
2007 230 520 150 3330 476
2008 2 40 510 750 40 80 51¢
200% 120 630 750 48 30 537
2010 2 00 5 50 750 55 Bo 558
201 165 5 85 750 63 30 575

Cash Returned to Shareholders

The table below shows the cash returned to shareholders dependent on thewr subscription cost, including theiwr income tax
reclaimed on subscription

Net Cumulative
Subscription Income tax cash dividends Net znnual Gross
price reclaim Invested paid yleld* yieldt
Year subscnbed p p p p b %
200 1000 200 Boo 633 72 97
2005 - € shares 100 ¢ 800 600 327 80 106
2010 103 1 309 722 150 17 156

The total return could be higher for thase shareholders who were able to defer a capital gain on subscnption and the net sum invested may be less

* Net annual yield represents the cumulative dividends paid expressed as a percentage of the net cash invested

t The gross equivalent wield if the dividends had been subject to higher rate tax {currently 32 5 per cemt on dividend income)} The additional raie of tax on
dwidend income of 42 5 per cent which came into force from the 2010/2011 1ax year for those sharehoiders who earn more than £150,000 has not been
included for those shareholders who would otherwise pay this additional rate of tax on dividends, the future gross equivalent yield will be higher than
the figures shown

Dividends paid to C shareholders post conversion have been adjusted by the conversion ratio (o 85642528)




Chairman’s Statement

This Chairman’s Statement forms part of the Report of the Directors

Fam pleascd Lo report anomeorease e Net Assel Value (“NAVY) of

5 5ap per share (55 pacent) to 107 66p per shate over the yean
to 31 December 201010, betore dividends Divaadends tor the veas
ware mantamed at 7 5p per share tor the filth successive yeat

After takimg account of the dividends the NAV al the yoar end was

100 [6p per shaie

Anthony Townsend
Chairman

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

In the year to 31 December 2011, the NAV per share
increased 5 5 per cent from 102 10p to 107 66p before
payment of dnvidends totaling 7 5p The changes over the
year can be summarised as follows

Pence per
share
NAV as at 1 January 20m
(after 2010 final Dividend of 4 5p deducted) 102 10
valuation uplft (5 45 per cent ) 556
107 66
First intenm dividend pard on 29 September 2013 (3 00)
Second intenm dividend paid on 9 December 2011 (a50)
NAY as at 31 December 2011 100 16

Durnng the year three of our unquoted comparues were
sold at an average of 2 ¢ tumnes original cost and realised net
profits of £6 3 mullion since acquisiion The sale of Reed &
Mackay, which was announced with the interim results,
was at a multiple of 4 8 imes cost This was an excellent
mnvestment return from a company that grew consistently
throughout the recent recession as a result of 1ts dedicated
focus on service and value for customers Durnng September,
the Company’s imnvestment in Quantix was sold realising a
profit of £1 7 mulhion and delivering a return of 3 1 times
cost after achieving fast growth since investment i 2007

All of the VCT qualifying tests had also been met
throughout the year

The Company holds a proportion of its assets 1n cash/

near cash investments for new and follow-on wnvestments
and to pay dividends and expenses etc During the year the
proportion of the Company’s assets held in interest bearing
securities and cash fell from 27 2 per cent (£17 6 million)
to 17 7 per cent {£10 7 mibon) The recent fundraising wall
enhance the Company ‘s abihty te continue to pay dividends
and costs without reducing the overall amounts available
for investment

LONGER TERM PERFORMANCE AND BENEFIT
OF THE VCT TAX RELIEFS

The Company’s investment objective and the mvestment and
dividend policies are aimed at producing consistent returns
over the long-term As a result, the investment process
employed by the Manager 15 one whch strives to actueve
consistent returns for investors through the investment

m estabhished and profitable investee comparues While

not stnctly comparable with the Company’s investment
performance, the FTSE All-Share Index (Total Return)
provides an indication of the returns on quoted equities
The graph on page 2 illustrates that since inception the
Company’s investment returns, as measured by NAV Total
Return, calculated on the basis of remvested dividends has
been ahead of the FTSE All-Share Index (Total Return)

The NAV Total Return at 31 Decernber 2011, calculated on
the basis of reinvested dividends, 1s 189 7p for each 100p
invested by founder shareholders before taking account

of any VCT tax reliefs The comparable return would be
232 1p if the imhal Income tax relief available at inception
was mncluded

The tax free nature of a VCT 15 of particular benefit for
quabfying shareholders as they do not have to pay mncome
tax on the drvidends they recewve, or declare them in a

tax return This means that qualifying shareholders m
Baronsmead VCT 3, who are lngher and additional rate tax
payers do not have to pay income tax equivalent to 25 per
cent and 36 1 per cent respectively on the cash dividend
they receive from the Company To generate the same after-
tax divadends, it would be necessary for the drvidend recerved
from a non-VCT investment to be 33 3 per cent or 56 5 per
cent higher, respectively




Chairman’s Statement

SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

On 12 January 2012 the Company launched an offer for
subscription to raise just less than €5 million (“the Offer”)
wluch 15 the equivalent of £4 135 muillion I am very pleased
to report that the offer became fully subscmbed on 7 February
2012 I would hke to welcome new shareholders and thank
them as well as those exasting shareholders who invested in
thus Iatest fundraising and contrbuted to 1its success

[ am also pleased to iform sharcholders that on 12 May 2011
Baronsmead VCT 3 won the Best Report & Accounts at the
AIC Awards and on 23 November 2011 was voted VCT of the
year jomtly with Baronsmead VCT 2 at the Investment Trust
Awards 2011 With respect to the first the judges praised the
ease with which key information could be gleaned from the
report and also commended the interesting case studies The
Judging process for the second award was based on a mixture
of a quantitative assessment of nvestment performance and
a qualitative assessment of the fund manager

VCT LEGISLATION AND WIDER REGULATION

There have been some positive actions by the Government
to improve VCT legislation The Pre-Budget Report in
November 2011 announced that the et of £1 milhion per
year per investee will be removed from 6 April 2012 and
the VCT scheme refocused on nsk investments In addihon,
subject to EU state aid approval, from 6 April 2012 investee
comparues will be able to employ up to 250 employees
(rather than the present it of up to 50 employees) and
have gross assets of £15 mullion (£7 mllion at present)
Additionally the annual investment hmit for qualifymng
companies 15 to be raised to £10 milhion from £2 million

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I look forward to meeting as many shareholders as

possible at our 11th Annual General Meeting to be held on
Wednesday 11 April 2012 at the London Stock Exchange,

10 Paternoster Square Proceedings for the day commence
with the AGM at 10 30 a m followed by presentations from
the Manager and an investee company After a ight lunch,
there will be a shareholders workshop with a fimsh time of
about2pm

OUTLOOK

In the Half-yearly report | anticipated continued uncertainty
and slower growth for the UK economy During the second
six months of the year the EU soveraign debt crisis, volatile
public markets and increasingly scarce credit have all
mnpacted the economy adversely

Against thus backdrop Baronsmead VCT 3 has realised good
profits from the sale of 2 number of private comparues

and 1ts portfolio 1s lowly geared The Board believes that

the Manager, ISIS, as an award winning house, has the
experience to gude portfolio comparies through difficult
trading environments and 1n this rapidly changing economic
chmate there will be specific sector opportunuties to which
the Manager remains alert and m whuch 1t intends to invest

The Government needs to create a more business friendly
environment and drive private sector growth, particularly
by encouraging investment by individuals and the corporate
sector The hberalisation arising from the increase 1n a
number of the VCT size hmutations has moved 1n the

right direction however the restriction 1n relation to funds
raised after 6 Apnl 2012 fails to recognise the economic
benefit that can be ganed from a change of ownershup and
the inyectron of new or renewed ambitions for the future
prospects of these businesses

Anthony Townsend
Chairman
17 February 2012




Manager’s Review

Sheenagh Egan Andrew Carside

Michael Probin

Llubl samner 2010, brading podormance aeross the unguotod and AN portiolio compacs had improved

compaied to the previous yvear, inchiudimg a sanes of profitable exats Phe daonoration i the cconomy and now

the thicat of furthar tecession 1s having some mmipact on the perttolie but i goneeal the companicos are vl

placad 1o teade through anothor dowturn

PORTFOLIO REVIEW

The portfolho compnsed sixty-mne mvestee comparues at the
year end after making five realisations and adding twelve
new mvestments Capital proceeds from reahsations totalled
£10 9 milhon and net capital profits reahsed in the penod
were £6 5 nmulhon Investment 1n unquoted and AIM traded
companes were £6 4 mullion and £2 9 mulhion respectively,
including further round financings

The new unquoted investments were 1n Valldata Group,

a UK leading provider of outsourced donation processing
and fulfilment services for the UK not-for profit sector,

and Independent Cornmurty Care Management a bive out
commuruty care provider supporting pecple with complex
long term conditions at home throughout the UK, plus three
companies set up and led by experienced chairmen seeking to
acquire businesses withun their three different areas of expertise

Each of the chairmen had previously been backed by 1515
through mnvestment by the Baronsmead VCTs These prior
investee compames were ScriptSwitch a healthcare [T
company, Reed & Mackay a business travel management
company and Hawksmere a business traimng company
All three investments delivered successful realisations for
shareholders and the three chairmen are now seeking new
oppertunities 1n their chosen sectors

The volume of qualifying AIM opportunities again
mcreased from the depressed levels of 2009 and 2010 A
total of £2 4 million was mnvested into seven AIM-traded
companies and another £0 5 milhon of addiional capital
was provided to exasting mvestments The three largest
AIM mvestments were 1n Music Festivals, TLA Worldwide
and Escher Group Holdngs Music Festivals focuses on the
ownership, development, and production of music festivals
mcluding Festival Internacional de Berucassim in Spain

and the Hop Farm Music Festival in Kent TLA Worldwade
provides management and marketing for basebail Escher
Group Holdings prowvides software for the global post office
automaton market

Wood Street Microcap Investment Fund (“Wood Street”)

was established by [5IS 1n May 2009 to provide flexability
for the Baronsmead VCTs to invest 1n generally larger

and more hquid non VCT qualifying AIM and Small Cap
opporturuties At 31 Decemnber 2011 Baronsmead VCT 3 had
mvested £2 5 mullion through Wood Street 1nto a portfolio
of tharty-two companues In total Wood Street has generated
a posttive return of 5 4 per cent over the year The Manager
recerves no additional fee for managing thus fund




Manager’s Review

EXITS IN THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The three unquoted, one AIM and one NYSE full exats have
together delivered sigmificant realised profits The former
were sold at an aggregate of 2 9 times cost yielding profits
of £6 3 mllion since acquusition

The three unquoted companies were Reed & Mackay,
Quantix and Getting Personal The companies had sustained
growth through and since the 2008/09 recession

® Reed & Mackay provides business travel management to
mostly financal services and professional services firms
and prdes 1tself on 1ts exceptional customer service
Over the five and half years that the Baronsmead VCTs
were shareholders, 1515 worked with the business to
strengthen the semor management team and further
develop the technological support for their travel
consultants The work-force more than doubled from
the 140 employees at the outset

¢ Quantix s an IT managed services provider of database
support and cloud services to enterprises throughout
the UK Since the Baronsmead VCTs invested 1n the
company 1 2007 1t has tripled its chent base and
become a recogrused leader 1n its field particularly for
its innovative approach Simon Goodenough, MD of
Quantix said “We have really enjoyed having 1515 as a
partner for the past four and a half years The business
has defimtely benefitted from having such a supportive
mvestor They gave us the confidence to invest 1n the
sales force and internal operations processes ahead of
our origmal plan ”

* Gething Personal 1s a leading mnternet retailer of personalised
gifts which had grown rapidly since its launch 5 years
ago and generated sales of £11 5 million 1n the year to
April 2011 The business was profitably sold to Card

Factory 1n July 2011

CASE STUDIES

The four case studies ighhighted in this Annual Report have

shown sustaned growth over the last three years

» (ableCom Networking Holdings supphes IT
and commurucation services to the UK student
accommodation and key worker sectors The latter
includes high quality accommodation around the BBC's
new northern base at Salford

s Nexus Vehicle Holdings, a leading provider of vehicle
rental services to the UK corporate market, 1s growing
both orgamically and by acqusition

o Crew Clothung Holdings, an achive and casual wear
clothuing brand, continues to grow 1ts portfoho of sites,
creating jobs as well as expenencing growth from its
direct mail/website retailing

s IDOX1s a leading developer and suppler of software
solutions and mformation services to UK focal
government The mvestment was made 1n 2003 and
took some years to establish its current business model
and profitability It 1s now a market leader in 1ts field
with turnover mcreasing frorn £3 mulhion at the date of
mvestment to £39 mulhon n the year to 31 October 2011

OUTLOOK

The economic optimism of 2010 has domimished during
2011 with widespread concern about growth prospects
Many of the portfolio companies are now more expernenced
at handling the econemic uncertainties This environment,
however, does not help to encourage the entrepreneunal
spirit so vital for the development of the SME sector that will
be key to the regeneration of the economy It 15 simply much
more difficult to evaluate the future and the associated risks

As an active investment manager ISIS continues to work
with our investee companies to help to steer them on an
appropriate course in these difficult conditions Few of the
portfolio comparnues are reliant on bank finance and so the
focus will be on sustaining sales growth whilst continuing
to enhance customer service so as to buuld resihent
businesses with continued meomentum

ISIS EP LLP
Investent Managers
17 February 2012




Table of Investments and Realisations

Investments in the year to 31 December 2011

Baok cost
Company Locanon Sector Aclivity L ooo
Unquoted investments
New
valldata Group Umited Melksham Business Services Payment processing for not for profit sector 1,616
Iindependent Community Care Management Limited  Kettenng Healthcare & Education  High acuity care for home based care users 1,346
Arcas Investments Limited London Business Services Company seeking to acquire businesses In the 1,000
business services sector
HealthTech Innovation Partners Limited London Healtheare & Education  Company seeking to acquire businesses in the 1,000
business healthcare IT sector
Quest Venture Partners Limned London Business Services Company seeking to acquire businesses in the 1,000
business travel sector
Music Festivals ple Loan note London Consumer Markets owner and operator of ive music festivals and events 400
Follow on
Independent Lving Services Limited Alloa Healthcare & Education  Care at home services 438
Total unquoted Investments 6,800
AIM-traded & listed investments
New
TLA Worldwide plc London Business Services Baseball sports management and markeung business 620
Escher Group Holdings pic Dublin ™™ Postal automauton software and services 614
Inspired Energy plc Kirkham Business Services Energy Consultancy fecused on corporate custorners 200
Paragon Entertainment Limited London Consumer Markets Visitor attraction business 200
GB Group plc Chester T™T 1D verification and data solutions 150
Ubisense Group plc Cambndge TMT* Technology & services offening real ume location 130
system solutions
Music Festrvils plc Landon Consumer Markets owner and operator of live music festivals and evenis 100
Follow on
Active Risk Group ple Maidenhead T™T® Risk management sofiware 124
Green Compliance pic Cirencester Business Services smalt business compliance M
Netcall ple St Ives ™T* Communications software 80
Driver Group plc Rossendale Business Services Dispute resclution [13
FFastFill ple London T™T* Trading platform software provider 63
STM Group plc Gibraltar Financial Services Offshore trust and company administration services 22
Total AIM-traded & listed Investments 2,469
Collective investment vehicle
Follow on
Wood Street Micracap Investment Fund Joo
Total collective Investment vehicle Joo
Total investments in the year 9,969
* Technology, Media and Telecommunications (*TMT~)
Realisations in the year to 31 December 2011
31 December Reabised
First 2040 profit’ loss® Qverai
nu@sine nt valuat an ths pered inlt ple
Lomoany dite L oou L ovo return’
Unquoted realisations
Quanuix Limited Full trade sale Mar g7 2,025 879 31
Getung Personal Limited Full trade sale {un 10 1,013 797 ND™
Reed & Mackay Lmited Full trade sale Nov o5 4,779 229 48
Carnell Contractors Lmited Lean repayment Mar 08 558 [+] 06
MLS bimited Loean repayment Jul o8 271 o 10
Total unquoted realisations 8,646 1,905
AlM-traded, listed & NYSE realisatiens
Craneware plc Fuli market sale sep oy 335 G 272
Alere Ine Full market sale Aug 09 179 (70) 08
Total AIM-traded, listed & NYSE realisations 514 {107)
Total realisations in the year 9,160 1,7987

* includes interest/dividends received, toan note redemptions and parnal realisatiens accounted far i proc perads
t Proceeds of £19,000 were also recewed 1n respect of Country Arusts Limited and a further £7,000 1n respect of MKM Group plc, both of which had been

written off 1n a prior period

* Not disclosed







Investment Portfolio

As at 31 December 2o0n

Investment Classification at 31 December 2011

31 December 31 December % of Equity
2010 20 held by % of Cquity
Bonk cosi Va uation valuaion % of net Baronrsmead head by
Company Sector f woo [ voot £ ouo assels V(T 3 pic all funds*
Unguoted
Nexus Vehicle Holdings Limited Business Services 2,368 4,182 5,658 94 124 574
CableCom Networking Holdings Limited T™MT 1,381 2,490 3,707 62 106 480
Crew Clothing Holdings Lmited Consumer Markets 984 2,569 2,676 4.4 5.4 228
Kafévend Holdings Limited Consumer Markets 1,252 2,032 1,991 33 158 665
€SC (World) Limeted T™T 1,606 1,687 1,540 32 88 0o
Fisher Outdoor Leisure Holdings Limited Consumer Markets 1,423 1,777 1,777 30 105 440
Valldata Group Limited Business Services 1,616 — 1,694 28 89 206
tnspired Thinking Group tmited Business Services 796 976 1,368 23 50 225
Independent Community Caré Management Limited  Healthcare & Education 1,346 - 1,346 212 109 550
TVC Group Limited TMT 1,233 774 1,298 217 130 593
Independent Living Services Limited Healthcare & Education 1,599 1,849 1,293 21 162 657
MLS Limited ™T 510 1,161 1,043 17 53 225
Arcas lnvestments Limited Business Services 1,000 - 1,000 17 96 a8 6
HezlthTech Innovation Partners Limited Healthcare & Education 1,000 — 1,000 17 96 486
Quest Venture Partners Limited Business Services 1,000 — 1,000 17 g6 486
Surgl C Limied Healthcare & Education 1,102 919 650 LA 98 447
Playforce Holdings Limited Business Services 1,033 1,023 512 08 97 440
Musie Festivals ple Loan note Consumer Markets 400 - 400 07 N/A N/A
Empire World Trade Limited Business Services 1,297 869 n 05 % ¥
Kidsunlimited Croup Limited Business Services 113 113 13 012 N/A NfA
Carnell Contractors Lmited Business Services 941 337 0 00 # #
Yention Discovery Limited Healthcare & Education 893 104 1] oo 12 jo
Total unquoted 4,853 21,862 30,787 5112

t The total investment valuation a1 31 December 2010 per the table above does not agree to the audited accounts due to purchases and sales since that date
* All funds managed by the same \nvestment manager, ISIS EP LLP. including Baronsmead V(T 3

# Following a restructuning, the effective ownership percentage 1s dependent on final exit proceeds
# Following a restructuring and partial redemption the funds no longer hold equity in Carnell Contractors Limited

wr






Investment Portfolio

As at 31 December 2011

31 December 31 December % of Equity
2010 091 held by % of Equity

Book cost Valuation Valuanon % of net  Bargnsmead held by
Lompany Secrtor f coo £ oout t coo asseis VCT 3 ple att funds
AlM
1DOX plc ™T 1,038 1,525 2,661 4.4 32 86
Jetf Group plc Financial Services 761 670 877 15 14 63
Netcall plc T™T 869 508 842 1.4 a1 204
Murgitroyd Group plc Business Services 319 751 791 13 31 62
TLA Worldwide plc Business Services 620 - 620 10 49 243
Escher Group Holdings plc T™T 614 — 564 10 21 16
Tasty plc Consumer Markets 469 316 547 0y 25 171
Accumul plc ™T 333 409 473 o8 36 207
Green Compliance plc Business Services 882 938 450 07 40 198
FFastFill plc T™MT 314 316 448 07 09 62
Paragon Entertainment Limited Consumer Markes 200 - 425 o7 32 177
Sinclair 15 Pharma plc® Healthcare & Education 524 - 399 [ 04 24
Brulines Group plt Business Services 646 544 388 1] 18 96
PROACTIS Holdings plc ™T 619 614 341 oé 5.4 262
Plastics Captal plc Business Sefvices 473 307 321 05 17 98
Anpario plc Healthcare & Education 275 335 315 05 20 148
Electric Word plc T™T 616 792 312 o5 52 88
InterQuest Group plc Business Services 310 360 268 05 18 70
Quadnetics Group plc Business Services 296 192 261 o4 ab 11
Driver Group plc Business Services 503 138 259 0.4 35 162
EG Solutrons plc TMT 375 357 266 0.4 31 142
Brady plc T™T 176 199 217 0.4 05 31
Inspired Energy pic Business Services 200 — F1}] o4 19 94
Sanderson Group plc T™T 387 209 201 o3 18 63
GB Gioup plc TMT 150 = 176 o3 04 18
Tangent Communicatlons plc Business Services 268 158 7% E} 20 102
Real Good Food Company (The) plc Consurrier Markets 540 92 160 03 oé 23
Begbies Traynor Group plc Financizl Services 231 347 156 LE] 0b 25
Stagecoach Theatre Arts ple Consumer Markets 19 180 153 03 45 90
Tristel plc Healthcare & Education 217 232 145 03 10 54
Ubisense Group plc T™T 130 - 137 0z 03 17
Active Risk Group plc T™T 159 44 125 o2 11 56
Cohort plc Business Services 176 84 119 02 03 14
Dods Group plc ™T 541 142 105 02 14 44
Prologic plc T™T 310 186 103 02 an 150
Music Festivals plc Consumer Markets 100 - a7 02 10 52
Autoclenz Hotdings ple Business Services 400 1% 77 o1 31 123
Bglobal plc Business Services 176 172 67 01 04 25
STM Group plc Financial Services 162 47 52 01 08 49
Hangar8 pic Business Services 44 44 El 01 05 26
Clanty Commerce Solutions plc T™T 50 43 9 00 03 60
Adventis Group ple T™T 361 Bg 10 00 31 207
Zoo Digital Group plc TMT 584 36 8 00 02 06
Cofliers International UK ple Financial Services 470 76 F 00 03 o8
Total AIM 12,310 11,481 14,402 24.0
Listed
Vectura Croup plc Heaithcare @ Education m 1,120 900 15 0§ 13
Chime Communications plc T™MT 369 386 293 05 02 13
Marwyn Management Partners plc™? Financial Services 526 - 81 61 o3 18
Marwyn Value Investors Limited Financial Services 54 55 44 01 13 6o
Total listed 1,729 1,561 1,118 212

A sinclair IS Pharma plc shares received in exchange for IS Pharma plc shares following a merger of the two companies

t The total investment valuatien at 31 December 2010 per the table above does not agree 10 the audited accounts due to purchases and sales since that date
* All funds managed by the same investment manager, ISIS EP LLP, including Baronsmead VCT 3
AA Marwyn Management Partners plc shares received In exchange for Praesepe plc shares following a takeover







Investment Portfolio

As at 31 December 2011

31 December 31 December % of Eguily
2030 2011 held by % of Equity

Book cost viluation valuangn % of net  Buronsmcad held by
Company Secior £ coo £ coor f’o0o assels vCT 3 plc all funds*
Listed interest bearing securities
UK T Bill 03fa1/12 6,199 - 6.799 1.4
BlackRock ICS plc - Institutional Sterling 1,590 5,700 1,590 26
Liquidity fund
P Morgan Liquidity Funds - Sterling Uquidity Fund 1590 1 200 1,590 26
Total listed Interest bearing securities $.97% 6,900 9,979 166
Collective investment vehicle
Wood Street Microcap Investment Fund 2525 2,123 2,826 47
Total collective Investment vehicle 2,525 2,123 2,826 a7
Total investments 56,436 44,927 59,312 587
Net current assets 783 13
Net assets 60,095 1000

t The total investment valuation at 31 December 2010 per the table above does not agree to the audited accounts due to purchases and sales siice that date
= All funds managed by the same investment managey, ISIS EP LLP, including Baronsmead V(T 3

AlM & Listed Portfolio Concentration Analysis at 31 December 2011

% of

Book tost Valuation Quoeted

Investment ranking by valuatien f ooo t coo portfolio
Top Ten 6,676 8,325 555
11-20 4,346 3,540 225
21-30 3,126 2,078 132
Jo+ 4,891 1.377 88
Total 19,035 15,710 1000
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Ten Largest Investments

The top ten mnvestments by current value at 31 December 2011 llustrate the diversity and size of investee
comparues within the portfoho This financal information 1s taken from publicly available information
published at Companies House, which has been audited by the auditors of the mmvestee compamnies

AlLISIS EP LLP managed funds

First Investment February 2008
Total Cost £9,500,000
Total equrty held 37 38%
Baronsmead VCT 3 only
Cost £2,368,000
Valuation £5,658,000
Valuation basis Earmungs Multiple
% of equity held 12 62%

NEXUS VEHICLE HOLDINGS LIMITED Leeds

Vehicle rental supplier

Year ended 30 September 2011 2010
£ million £ million
Sales 383 335
EBITA 43 40
Profit before tax 14 13
Net Assets 17 cs
No of Employees 90 73 www nexusremal co uk

{Saurce Nequs Vehide Holdings Limited Financial Statements 2011}

Nexusisa

supplier of car and van rial,

users which

providing a
detivers access to & huge range of rental suppliers and vehcle l)wfmm a sngle orﬂa‘in,g pnh:. The systom i3 intarnet
ve spply

based and offrs extensive

ilttics at the same time

umﬂ

CABLECOM NETWORKING HOLDINGS LIMITED Clevedon

Internet access solutions

Al ISIS EP LLF managed funds Year ended 30 Septernber 2011 2010
First Investment May 2007 £milion £ mithon
Total Cost £5,600,000 sales 122 a2
Total equity held 48 Q0% EBITA 1a 09
Loss before tax (0 2) {0 5)
Baronsmead V(T 3 enly Net Assets 03 o5
Cost £1,381,000 No of Employees 61 52 www cablecomnetworking.co uk
Valuation £3,707,000 {Source Cablecom Nrtworking Holdings Limited, Audited Annual Report and Accounts 2011}
Valuation basis Earnmngs M‘ﬂtlplﬁ CableCom's primary bicsiness is to delover and mansge wired and wireless broadband communucation seraces to high
% of equity held 10 56% dm:igrmmmﬂozwmhnmdmthlbajmtdmm These managed services are provided through long term

systems for corporate customers

All 1515 EP LLP managed funds

CREW CLOTHING HOLDINGS LIMITED London

Year ended 31 October

Multi-channel clothing retatler
2010 2009

First Investment November 2006 £ million £ milhon

Totat Cost £3,955,000 Sales 346 293

Total equity held 22 79% EBITA 27 08

Profit before tax 20 02

Baronsmead V(T 3 onty Net Assets 3s 23

Cost £984,000 No of Employees 284 273 www crewclothing co uk

Valuation £2,676,000 tSource Crew Clothung Holdiogs Limited, C d Financial 2010)

Valuation basis Earnmngs Mulople Crew 13 a British brand of men s and women s casual clothing and accessorwes All products are designed

% of equity held 541% wn-house and its range is sold through its own estate o retarl outlets and also through its own webstte and via various
IDOX PLC London Local Authortty IT Provider
All (SIS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 31 October 2011 2010

First Investment May 2002 £ mulhon £ muhon

Total Cost £3,015,000 Sales 386 313

Total equity held 9 60% EBITA 95 75

Profit before tax 56 49

Baronsmead VLT 3 only Net Asscts 344 310

Cost £1,038,000 No of Employees 3863 332 www idoxgroup ¢om

Valuation £2,661,000 {Source IDOX ple Aonual Report and Accounts 2011)

Valuation basis Bid price IDOX provides software and IT Services (o the UK local government market. The group has a dominant market position

% of equity held 321% n Planning Department Systems and a growing penetration of other local government functions

Al 151S EP LLP managed funds

First [nvestment October 2005
Total Cost £5,024,000
Total equity held 66 50%
Baronsmead VCT 3 only
Cost £1,252,000
Valuation £1,991,000
Valuation basis Earnings Multiple
% of equity held 15 79%

KAFEVEND HOLDINGS LIMITED Crawley

SME drinks vending

Year ended 30 Septernber 2010 2009

£ million £ mallion
Sales 156 147
EBITA 20 19
Profit before tax o8 05
Net Assets 12 (18]
No of Employees 25 98 www kafevending co uk

{Source Kaftvend Group Limited audited Annual Report and Accounts 2010)

Kaftvend provides a comprehenstye hot drinks
range of vending machines typically on rental or lease

serviee across the UK It supplies corporate customers with a
terms and then supplies consumables and machvie savioing

Note EBITA represents earnings before mterest, tax and amortisahon
Profit before tax represents earnings before tax, after interest, amortisation and depreciation




Ten Largest Investments

6| CSC (WORLD) LIMITED Pudsey, Leeds

(A trading name of Cobeo 867 Limuted)

All 1515 EP ULP managed funds

First Investment January 2008
Total Cost £6,450,000
Total equity held 40 03%
Baronsmead YCT 3 only
Cost £1,606,000
Valuation £1,940,000
Valuation basis Earnings Multple
% of equuty held 8 81%

Software for Structural Engineers

Year ended 31 March 2011 2010
L milhon £ mihion
Sales 73 64
EBITA 23 19
Loss before tax 04) © 8)
Net Liabihties {13) (0 6)
No of Employees 58 35 www cscworld com
(Source Coboo 867 Limited Durectors’ Report and G ¥ st 2011}

CSC Werld Limuted (CSC) is the UK market leading structural engineering software company based in Leeds The

Company supplies engineering caloula tion: software, bu design software and analysis ey inchuding
TEDDS, Fastrak and Orion to corporate businesses , with a substantial presence in Souih East Asia.

All 115 EP LLP managed funds

First Investment June 2006

Total Cost £5,700,000

Total equrty held 44 00%
Baronsmead VCT 3 only

Cost £1,423,000

Valuation £1,777,000

Valuation basts Earmings Multiple

% of equuty held 10 45%

7 | FISHER OUTDOOR LEISURE HOLDINGS LIMITED St Albans Supplying the cycling industry

Year ended 31 January* 2010 2009
£milhon £ millien
Sales 265 222
EBITA 23 18
Profit before tax o7 01
Net Assets 14 10
Neo of Employees 96 83 www fisheroutdeor co uk

* Year end has changed to July The next Flnancial Statements will be for the 18 month penod ended 31 July 2011
(Source Fisher Outdoor Leisure Holdings Limited, threctors’ Report and Finandal Staternents 2010)

ﬂdurunl?mppﬂa-afbuythpuuudmrbmcﬁnbu,a-:—[hrreuﬂmundmdcpmdmtm It has
exclustve rights to promote and dustributr some of the key internationa] branded products within the UK and alsc har
some own branded products

8 [ VALLDATA GROUP LIMITED Melksham

All 1515 EP LLP managed funds

First Investment January 2011
Total Cost £6,475,000
Total equrty held 40 57%
Baronsmead VCT 3 only
Cost £1,616,000
Valuation £1,694,000
Valuation basis Earmngs Multiple
% of equity held 892%

Process outsourcer to the charity sector

Year ended 31 March 2011 2010"
£ milhon £ nillion
Sales 63 54
EBITA 09 c8
Profit before tax 08 o7
Net Assets 06 04
No of Employees 292 234 www valldata co uk
* restated
{Source Valldata Services Limited Directory’ Report and Financial Statements 2011}
Wiltshere based Valldata s the UK s leadeng provider rid m 'f!d.:d fulfil .m—vtr:r.rB I"ﬁ_{nj‘[s;;}u
UK rot t market, over ¢ UK ¢ Ev!ryyurVa :lmnnqaowr n
hmmmw with dorors mz_mnmﬂ_yﬂﬂy ofw% miilan of donated funds

9 | INSPIRED THINKING GROUP LIMITED Birmingham

AULISIS EP LLP managed funds

Valuation basis
% of equity held

First Investment May 2010

Total Cost £3,200,000

Total equity held 22 50%
Baronsmead VCT 3 only

Cost £796,000

Valuation £1,368,000

Earnings Mulhple
495%

Retail marketing services

Year ended 31 August 2010
£ mollion
Sales 129
EBITA 05
Profit before tax 04
Net Assets 09
No of Employees 96 wwwlnsplredlhlnkln'roup om
{Source cd Group Holdings Durectors’ Report and C rdated Fi; for year
ed 31 August 2010)

Inspured Thinking Group (ITG} prowvudes services that help large marketing departments operate more efficeently
tnctuding improved procurement of artwork and print management The new funding ways used to acquire Total
Markettng Service lprvvduufwurkﬂ.vw rmanagement systoms to marketing departments

10 | INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY CARE MANAGEMENT LIMITED Kettering Complex homecare provider

AlLISIS EP LLP managed funds

First Investment October 2011

Total Cost £6,010,000

Total equuty held 55 00%
Baronsmead ¥{T 3 only

Cost £1,346,000

Valuation £1,346,000

Valuation basis Cost

% of equuty held 10 89%

Period ended 31 December/31 August 2010* 2009
£mlton £ milhon

Sales 91 68
EBITA 02 01
Profit before tax 02 o1
Net Assets/(Liabilities) 00 {C1)
No of Employees 316 360 www icemcares co uk
* Period ended 31 Decernber 2010 oumbers
pendent Ci Care A r'{ t Ltd Abbreviated Accounts for penod ended

31 December 2010)

Ki based ICCM is 2 Lea homecare provider to individuals with complex lartg -term conditions wnclud

brawn vyury and tetr; ICCM currently has around 80 clints spread throughout the UK and les
climr.swliwugpmdm withm ther ewn homes




Creating Shareholder Value

HOW ISIS CREATES AND REALISES VALUE FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BARONSMEAD VCT 3 PLC

Access to an attractive, diverse portfolio

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc gives shareholders access to a diverse portfoho of growth businesses, both unquoted private
equity and AIM-traded companies

Each business has already demonstrated profitable success from 1its busmess model before investment to provide a degree
of stabiity and foundation from which to bwuld Each business 1s led by entreprencunal management teams that are
aspiring to achieve above average growth from attractive and differentiated market positions

The Manager’s approach to investing
The Manager, ISIS, aspires to select the best opportunities and has a distinctive selection cnitera based on,

e  Businesses that demonstrate elements of market leadership in their niche
e  Management teams that can develop and deliver profitable and sustained growth

*  The company being able to be an attractive asset appealing to a range of buyers at the appropriate tume to exat

In order to ensure there 1s a strong pipeline of opportunities, ISI5 mnvests i sector knowledge and networks It then
undertakes sigruficant pro-active marketing to mteresting unquoted targets in preferred sectors Tlus 15 bulding a database
of businesses that are keen to maintain a relationship wath 1515 ahead of possible Investment opportunities

ISIS as an influential shareholder

For unquoted private equuty mvestments, ISIS 1s an involved shareholder and representatives of the Manager jomn the
investee board The role of ISIS 15 to ensure that strategy 1s clear, the business plan 1s well thought through and the
management resources are in place to deliver profitable growth The intention 1s to buld on the imtial platform and grow
the business so that 1t can become an attractive target able to be either sold or floated mn the medium term The investment
strategy for AlM-traded compares has increasingly focused on taking more influential stakes through the collective
shareholdings of the Baronsmead family of VCTs

Thus year we have focused on four companues, three unquoted and one AlM-traded, which have demonstrated strong
performance during the recent penod of economic uncertainty and now, with the help of 1515 have emerged with a strong
appetite and abihity to deliver growth both through acquusition and organically




Creating Shareholder value

CABLECOM NETWORKING HOLDINGS LIMITED

““Growth through innovation”

CableCom supplies IT and commumcation managed services to the UK student accommodation and key worker sectors
CableCom has over time developed its offering to nctude the proactive management of a range of communications including
broadband, telephony and TV to many of the leading providers of student accommodation and umversities

The company was founded in 1988, imtially as a cabhng and IT nfrastructure busmess Since 2004 the company has grown
steadily and profitably via winming contracts with a number of large blue chup customers and gaiming accreditation for the
implementation of the latest data network technologies

The Baronsmead VCTs invested £5 6 mullion in the management
buy out in May 2007 Growth has continued to be a feature
for the business since then despite the economic downturn

Discussing the impact of the nvestment in May 2007,
Managing Director Mark Burchfield commented,

“In that first stage we were too inwardly focused and
not spending enough time thinking about the end game
What ISIS gave us, even more valuable to us than the
Sfunding, was expertence and a sense of perspective”

The accommodation providers, both at universities and
private sector landlords, recogmse the importance of the
student experience IT 15 a key requirement for the student
demographic and this was particularly demonstrated with
the demand for services such as Facebook and YouTube wiuch
sigmficantly increased from the summer of 2007

Looking forward, as well as strengthenng 1ts presence wn the student accommodation market CableCom has recently
moved mnto the lugh end residential sector, and won a significant new contract to dehver voice, broadband and TV services
at Media City, the accommodation being built around the BBC’s new northern base i Salford

www cablecomnetworking co uk

CREW CLOTHING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Crew Clothing Holdings has its heritage
m its south-coast roots, having been
founded by Alastair Parker-Swift as a
smngle retail site in Salcombe m 1993
The brand has since evolved nto the
fast growwng premum active and
casual wear sectors but has retained
its unique hentage and position as
the quintessenhally English brand for
customers who emjoy an active and
outdoor social hfestyle

“’Sector knowledge and experience’”

The Baronsmead VCTs imtially acquired
a 25 per cent stake in the company in a
£7 75 milhon fund raising in November
2006 The Manager has asuccessfultrack
record of backing consumer busmesses
whuch brought about the imtal contact

with Crew Clothing Holdings

Since investment Crew Clothing Holdings has grown sigmificantly wWath the support of SIS, the business has grown from
34 to over 60 stores across the UK and 1t now has over 400 employees Particular success has been gamed from direct sales
through catalogues and web with currently over 3 2 milhon catalogues mailed to customers every year

The CEQ Octavia Morley commented,

“We are looking forward to continuing our strong growth with our partners at ISIS by developing the Crew brand
to reach new customers both by operang stores across the UK and through our catalogue and online channels”

The depth of retail sector experience within the Manager helped both the mvestment decision and the subsequent
development of Crew Clothung Holdings
www crewclothing co uk




Creating Shareholder Value

IDOX PLC “‘Supportive shareholder’’

IDOX 15 a leading software and nformation
management solutions provider At 31 October 2011,
78 per cent of turnover was from the UK publc
sector and the balance from the private sector

IDOX provides local authorities with software &
managed services Thesedeliverseamlessintegration
and automation from consumer websites through
to document storage In the private sector, its
engineering information management software
combines McLaren and CTSpace, who are leaders
i enterprise scale and cloud based engineering
document management solutions in asset intensive
mdustrnies In the current year, IDOX anticipates
that some 63 per cent of turnover will be of a
recurring nature

The Baronsmead VCTs first invested mn IDOX in 2002, approxumately two years after the company floated on AIM Ther
shareholding increased as a cornerstone investor 1n a £21 mlhion reverse takeover of CAPS Solutions in June 2007 and
today the aggregate shareholding 15 now 9 6 per cent

IDOX has shown strong growth increasing annual sales from £3 mullion to over £38 milhon over the last decade Sales and
operating profits grew 23 and 27 per cent respectively in the last financial year to 31 October 2011 The increases have been
a comhnation of both organic growth and acqusition IDOX 15 seeking to diversify from its core local authority markets
into the private sector to become a leading player in asset intensive industnes hke O1l and Gas and Pharmaceuticals

The Charrman since 2005, Martin Brooks, commented,

“ISIS as the Manager of the Baronsmead VCTs has become a lead mnvestor Few institutional investors can provide
the hugh level of support and key source of mformation on markets and advisers ISIS 15 always available for
general advice, which 1s given clearly and objectively with long-term shareholder value e mund *

www 1doxgroup com

NEXUS VEHICLE HOLDINGS LIMITED “Growth by acquistition”’

Nexus 15 an innovative provider of vehicle rental to corporate users and the public sector At the heart of Nexus 15 a web
based procurement system called IRIS that s fully integrated into both customers and supplers IRIS automates traditional
back office funictions to save tune and money whalst also offering wide capability of supply chorces

In February 2008, the Baronsmead VCTs nvested i the £11 million management buy out/management buy n led by
highly experienced industry veteran Neil McCrossan who had previously been a VP at National Car Rental

Seven months later, with support from ISIS, Nexus acquired the Vehicle Rental Management division of a larger fleet
management busimness with a second mvestment from the Baronsmead VCIs During the period under review the
Baronsmead VCTs have provided a thard mvestment to support the growth of Nexus, the acquisition of Adapted Vehucle
Hire Limited, whuch specialises in renting adapted cars and vans throughout the UK to dnvers wiath disabilities

On the acquusitions, the
chairman of Nexus reflected,

“In one move Nexus burst through the
glass caling It meant more revenue,
more big clients but with no more
overheads It proved the scalablity of
Nexus way beyond our expectations”

Nexus demonstrates the ability of
the Manager to back ambitious
management teams with a well
thought out strategy to grow value
by selected acquisitions, supported
by further mvestment from the
Baronsmead VCTs

www nexusrental.co uk




Board of Directors

as at 31 Decernber 2011

Andrew Karney

(Senior Independent Dhrector)

{Date of appointment 10 January 2001)
(age 69) was deputy chairman and

a shareholder of Language Line
Limmited m whuch Baronsmead VCT

3, was an investor He 1s chairman

of Tir1 — making integrity work,

an international integnty reform

non governmental orgamsation

He was previously a durector of The
Guardian Media Group plc, Guardian
News and Media Limited, Integrated
Mucro Products plc and a number

of unquoted comparzes He was a
founder director of Cable London plc
and an executive director of Logica plc
He 15 also a chartered engineer

Anthony Townsend (Chairman)

(Date of appointment 4 August 2009)

(age 64) has over 40 years experience In financial services and 1n industry He

1s chairman of Brnitish & American Investment Trust ple, F&C Global Smaller
Comparues plc, Finsbury Growth & Income Trust plc and Miton Worldwide Growth
Investment Trust plc, and a non-executive director of Hansa Capital Lirmited and
the Worldwide Healthcare Trust plc He was previously a director of Rea Brothers
Group plc and was charrman of the Assoaation of Investment Companies

Gillian Nott OBE

(Audit and Risk Commuttee Chairman)
(Date of appomtment 10 January 2001)
{age 66 ) has in-depth experience of
private investors as chuef executive of
ProShare (1994-1999) Previously she
was responsible for the private equuty
portfolio at BP and has been on the
board of the FSA She 1s currently a
non-executive director of BlackRock
Smaller Comparues Trust plc, Martin
Currie Global Portfolho Trust ple and
JP Morgan Russian Securities plc and 1s
chairman of Witan Paaific Investment
Trust plc as well as a deputy chairman
of the Association of Investment
Compamnes Gill 1s a non-executive
director of Baronsmead VCT 2 and
Baronsmead VCT 5

lan Orrock

{Date of appomntment 21 October 2010)
{age 65) lan has wide experience
having founded, developed and sold

a number of businesses particularly
focusing on the international media,
technology and telecoms sectors,

and has also worked at board level

mn quoted global organisations He s
currently a non-executive director of
Henderson Private Equuty Investment
Trust Plc and 15 a director of a number
of private companzes

As a fully listed Company, Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 1s requured to comply wath the Financial Reporting Counal’s UK
Corporate Governance Code Thus Code requures the Company to be headed by an effecttve Board of Directors whe provide
entrepreneunal leadership of the Company within a framework of prudent and effective controls

The directors of a VCT and the investment manager are requured under the hsting rules and continuing obligations of

the London Stock Exchange to have sufficrent and satisfactory experience in the management of a portfolio of unquoted
mvestments of the size and type in which the VCT proposes to nvest The Directors are all members of the Audit and Risk
Commuttee, Management Engagement and Remuneration Commuttee and Nomination Commuttee




Report of the Directors

The Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 25 to 27 form part of the

Report of the Directors

Results and Dividends

The Directors present the eleventh Report and audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011

Ordinary shares £'000
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 3,288
final dwidend for 2010 of 4 5p per ordinary share paid on

3 Aprit 2011 (2,729)
First interim dividend of 3 op per ordinary share paid on

29 September 2011 (1.796)
Second intenm dividend of 4 sp per ordinary share paid on

9 December 2011 (2,689)
Total dividends pald during the year (7,.214)

Principal Activity and Status

The Company 1s registered in England as a Public Limuted
Company (Registration number 04115341) The Directors
have managed and intend to continue to manage the
Company s affairs in such a manner so as to comply with
Section 274 of the Income Tax Act 2007 which grants
approval as a VCT A review of the Company’s business
during the year 15 contamned in the Chairman’s Statement and
Manager’s Review

Business Review

The Business Review has been prepared 1n accordance with
the requirements of Section 417 of the Comparnues Act 2006
and best practice

The purpose of thus review 1s to provide shareholders

with a2 summary setting out the business objectives of the
Company, the Board’s strategy to achueve those objectives,
the risks faced, the regulatory environment and the key
performance mdicators (“KPIs”) used to measure performance

Strategy for achieving objectives

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 1s a tax efficient company hsted

on the London Stock Exchange’s mamn market for listed
securifies and aims to achieve long-term investment returns
for private investors

Investment Policy

The Company’s mnvestment policy 1s to invest pnmanly
in a diverse portfolio of UK growth businesses, whether
unquoted or traded on AIM

Investments are made selectively across a range of sectors
in companies that have the potential to grow and enhance
their value

investment securties

The Company tnvests 1n a range of secunties including, but
not limited to, ordinary and preference shares, loan stocks,
convertible secunhes, and fixed-interest securities as well

as cash Unquoted mvestments are usually structured as a
combmation of ordinary shares and loan stocks, while AIM
mnvestments are primarily held in ordinary shares Pending
investment 1n unquoted and AlM-traded securities, cash 1s
primarly held i an nterest bearing meoney market open ended
investment company (“OEIC”), UK gilts and Treasury Bills

UK companies

Investments are primartly made 1n companies which are
substantially based in the UK, although many of these
investees will trade overseas The comparues i which
mvestments are made must have no more than £15 milhon
of gross assets at the time of investment (or £7 miulhon if the
funds being invested were raised after 5 April 2006) to be
classed as a VCT qualifying holding

VCT regulation

The mvestment policy 1s designed to ensure that the
Company continues to qualify and 15 approved as a VCT
by HM Revenue and Customs Amongst other conditions,
the Company may not mnvest more than 15 per cent of
1ts investments 1n a single company and must have at
least 70 per cent by value of its mvestiments throughout
the period 1n shares or secunties comprised in qualifying
holdings, of which 30 per cent by value must be ordinary
shares wluch carry no preferential rights In addihion,

1t must have at least 10 per cent by value of its total
Investments m any qualifying company in ordinary shares
which carry no preferential nghts

Asset mix

The Company aims to be at least 90 per cent invested

mn growth businesses subject always to the quality of
mvestment opportunities and the timung of realisations
Any ununvested funds are held 1n cash and interest bearing
secunities It 1s intended that, at any grven tume, at least

75 per cent of any funds raised by the Company will be
mvested in VCT quabfying investments

Risk diversificatien and maximum exposures

Rusk 15 spread by investing 1in a number of different
businesses within different industry sectors using a muxture
of securities Generally no more than £2 5 milhon, at cost,
1s nvested in the same company The value of an individual
mvestment 15 expected to increase over tume as a result of
trading progress and a continuous assessment 15 made of 1its
suitability for sale

Investment style

Investments are selected 1n the expectation that the
application of private equuty disciplines including an active
management style for unqguoted companies will enhance
value and enable profits to be realised from planned exats
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Co-investment -
The Company aims to invest in larger more mature

unquoted and AIM compamnes and to achieve this it invests
alongside the other Baronsmead VCT5 Currently ISIS EP LLP

(‘the Manager’} and 1its executive members are mandated to
mvest 1n unquoteds alongside the Company on terms which
align the interests of sharcholders and the Manager

Borrowing powers -
The Company ‘s Articles permt borrowing to give a degree

of investment fleabihty The Company’s polcy 1s to use
borrowing for short term hquidity purposes only The
Company’s borrowings are restricted to 25 per cent of the

value of the gross assets of that company The Company
currently has no borrowings

Management

The Board has delegated the management of the investment -
pertfoho to the Manager The Manager also provides or

procures the proviston of company secretanal, adrurustrative,
accounting and custodian services to the Company

The Manager has adopted a ‘top-down, sector-driven’

approach to identifying and evaluating potential nvestment
opporturnuties, by assessing a forward view of firstly the

business environment, then the sector and finally the speafic
potential investment opportunty Based on its research, the
Manager has selected a number of sectors that it believes

will offer attractive growth prospects and mvestment
opporturuties Diversification 1s also achueved by spreading
investments across different asset classes and making
investments for a variety of different periods -

The Manager's Review on pages 6 and 7 provides a review
of the investment pertfolio and of market conditions during
the year

Principal risks, risk management and regulatory
environment

The Board believes that the prinaipal risks faced by the
Company are

— Economic risk — events such as an economuic recession
and movement 1n interest rates could affect smaller
comparues’ valuations

- Loss of approval as a Venture Capital Trust - the
Company must comply with Section 274 of the Income
Tax Act 2007 which allows 1t to be exempted from
capital gains tax on mvestment gains Any breach of
these rules may lead to the Company losing its approval
as a VCT, qualifying sharecholders who have not held
their shares for the designated holding period having
to repay the mncome tax rehief they obtaned and future
drnndends paid by the Company becomuing subject to
tax The Company would also lose 1ts exemption from
corporation tax on capital gamns

Investment and strategic — an mappropriate strategy,
poor asset allocation or consistent weak stock selection
might lead to under performance and poor returns to
shareholders Therefore the Company ‘s investment
strategy 1s periodically reviewed by the Board which
considers at each meeting the performance of the
investment portfoho

Regulatory - the Company 1s requured to comply with
the Compamnies Act 2006, the rules of the UK Listing
Authority and Umnited Kingdom Accounting Standards
Breach of any of these mught lead to suspension of the
Company’s Stock Exchange listing, financial penalties or
a qualified aucht report General changes in legislation,
regulations or government policy could sigruficantly
mnftuence the decisions of investors or impact upon the
markets n whuch the Company nvests

Reputational — madequate or failed controls might result
1n breaches of regulations or loss of shareholder trust

Operational - fallure of the Manager’s and
admirustrator’s accounting systems or disruption to its
business rmught lead te an mabihity to provide accurate
reporting and momtoring

Financial - the Board has dentified the Company’s
principal finanaal risks whach are set out n the

notes to the Finanaal Statements on pages 42 to 44
Inadequate controls mught lead to misappropnation of
assets Inappropnate accounting policies mught lead to
musreporting or breaches of regulations

Market Risk — Investment i AIM-traded and unquoted
comparues, by its nature, involves a hugher degree of
risk than mvestment in companies {raded on the main
market In particular, smaller comparues often have
hmuted product lines, markets or financial resources and
may be dependent for their management on a smaller
number of key individuals In addition, the market for
stock 1n smaller compamies 15 often less hquid than that
for stock in larger compamnes, bringing with 1t potential
difficulties i acquiring, valuing and disposing of such
stock

Liqudity Risk — The Company ‘s nvestments may be
difficult to realise The fact that a share 1s traded on AIM
does not guarantee its hquudity The spread between the
buymng and selling price of such shares may be wide and
thus the price used for valuation may not be achievable

Competitive Risk ~ Retentton of key personnel of

the Manager 15 vital to the success of the Company
Appropriate incentives are in place to ensure retenfion of
such personnel
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The Board seeks to mitigate the internal risks by setting
policy, regular review of performance, enforcement of
contractual oblhigations and monitoring progress and
comphance In the mitigation and management of these
nisks, the Board applies rgorously the principles detailed in
the FRC’s “Internal Controls Guidance to Directors” Details
of the Company s mternal controls are contamned in the
Corporate Governance section on page 27

Performance and key performance indicators
(“KPIs™)

The Board expects the Manager to deliver a performance
which meets the objective of achieving long term mvestment
returns, mncluding tax-free dvidends, for private investors

Performance, measured by dividends paid to shareholders
and the change in NAV per share, 15 also measured against
the FTSE All-Share Index Total Return This index, as the
widest measure of UK quoted equuties, has been adopted

as an nformal benchmark Investment performance,

cash returned to shareholders and share price are also
measured against the Company’s peer group of other
generalist venture capital trusts A review of the Company’s
performance during the financial period, the position of the
Company at the year end and the outlook for the cormng
year 15 contamned within the Chairman’s Statement on pages
4 and 5

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in
meeting the Company ‘s objective against the primary KPls
highhighted on pages 1 to 3 of the Report

Issue and Buy-Back of Shares
Dunng the period the Company 1ssued no ordinary shares

During the perniod the Company bought back 880,000
ordmary shares with a nominal value of 10p to be held in
treasury representing 1 3 per cent of the 1ssued share capital
at a cost of £832,350 and scold 235,000 ordnary shares
with a nomunal value of 10p from treasury, representing

0 3 per cent of the 1ssued share capital for £217,370

The remaining shares will not be sold at a discount wider
than the discount prevailling at the time the shares were
mitially bought back by the Company The Company holds
7,622,317 ordinary shares 1n treasury representing 11 3 per
cent of the 1ssued share capital as at 16 February 2012 and
the maximum amount of ordinary shares held 1n treasury
dunng the year was 7,857,317

Directors

Biographees of the Directors who served during the year and
at the date of thus report are shown on page 17

As explained 1n more detail under Corporate Governance on
pages 25 to 27 and in accordance wath the provisions of the
AIC Code of Corporate Governance, the Board has agreed that
Directors who have held office for more than mine years wall
retire annually Accordingly, as Mr A Karney and Mrs G Nott
have held office for a period of more than mne years, they wil
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company and, being ehgible, offer themselves for re-
election Mrs G Nott who 1s a director of Baronsmead VCT 2,
plc and Baronsmead VCT 5 plc 15 also required to seek annual
re-election under the terms of the UKLA's Listing Rules

Mr Townsend, who was elected at the Company ‘s Annual
General Meeting held in 2010, will in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association and the provisions of the
AIC Code of Corporate Governance, retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being ehgible,
offer umself for re-electron

The Board confirms that, following formal performance
evaluations, the performance of each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstrates commutment to the
role The Board belicves that it 1s therefore in the best interests
of shareholders that the retiring Directors be re-elected

The mterests of the Directors in the shares of the Company,
at the beginning and at the end of the year, or date of
appomntment, if later, were as follows

Ordinary Shares 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

ordinary Ordinary

10p shares 10p shares

Anthony Townsend 7,609 7,609

Andrew Karney 82,709 82,709

Gdlian Nott 55,900 55,500

lan Qrrock* - -

Total shares held 146,218 146,218
* Appointed an 23 October 2010

There have been no changes in the holdings of the Directors
between 31 December 2011 and 17 February 2012, but
several Directors have subscribed for shares under the offer
for subscription launched on 12 January 2012

No Director has a service contract with the Company

All Directors are members of the Audit and Risk,
Management Engagement and Remuneration, Nomination
and Valuahon Committees With a relatively small Board, 1t
13 deerned both practical and proportionate te involve ali the
Drirectors 1n each commuittee
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The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
thus Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a
Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
mnformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information

Companies Act 2006 Disclosure

In accordance with Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium Size
Companues and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 the Directors disclose the followmg information

e the Company’s capital structure and vohing rights are
summansed mn Note 11, and there are no restrictions
on voting rights nor any agreemnent between holders of
securities that result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights,

» there exast no secunties carrying special rights with
regard to the control of the Company,

o the Company does not have an employees’ share scheme,

o the rules concerrung the appomntment and replacement of
Directors, amendment of the Articles of Association and
powers to 1ssue or buy back the Company’s shares are
contained 1n the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Compares Act 2006,

e there exast no agreements to which the Company 1s party
that may affect its control followmng a takeover bid, and

o there exist no agreements between the Company and its
Directors providing for compensation for loss of office
that may occur because of a takeover bid

The Board recogruses the requirernent under Section 417(5)
of the Act to detail information about environmental
matters (including the impact of the Company s business on
the environment), any Company employees and social and
commumty issues, mcluding information about any pohcies
it has 1n relation to these matters and effectiveness of these
policies The Company has no employees and has hm:ted
direct impact on the enviconment The Company aims to
conduct itself responsibly, ethucally and fairly

Directors’ Professional Development

When a new Director 15 appointed he or she s offered an
mduction programme that is arranged with the Manager
Directors are also provided on a regular basis with key
mformation on the Company s policies, regulatory and
statutory requirements and internal controls Changes affecting
directors’ responsibilittes are advised to the Board as they arise
Directors also regularly participate in industry serninars

Directors’ indemnity

Directors’ and officers’ hability insurance cover 1s 1n
place in respect of the Directors The Company's Articles
of Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemmty for Directors in respect of costs
whuch they may incur relating to the defence of any
proceedings brought against them arising out of thewr
posttions as Directors, mn whuch they are acquitted or
Judgement 15 given 1n their favour by the Court Save for
such indemruty provisions in the Company’s Articles of
Association and in the Directors’ letters of appointment,
there are no qualifying third party indemmnty provisions

Conflicts of Interest

The Directors have declared any conflicts or potential confhct
of mterest to the Board of Directors whuch has the authority
to approve such situations The Company Secretary
mantains the Register of Directors’ Conflicts of Interests
which 1s reviewed quarterly by the Board and when changes
are notified The Directors advise the Company Secretary
and Board as soon as they become aware of any conflicts of
mterest Directors who have conflicts of interest do not take
part 1n discussions which relate to any of their confucts

Whistleblowing |

The Board has considered the UK Corperate Governance

Code’s recommendahons 1n respect of arrangements by |
which staff of the Manager or Secretary of the Company
may, 1in confidence, raise concerns within therwr respective
orgamsations about possible improprieties in matters of
finanaal reporting or other matters

It has concluded that adequate arrangements are in place
for the proportionate and independent mvestigation of such
matters and, where necessary, for appropnate follow-up
action to be taken within ther respectrve organisations

Management

I5IS EP LLP manages the investments for the Company
The hiquad assets within the portfolio (being cash, mterest
bearing securities, gilts and other assets, which are not
categorised as venture capital mvestments for the purpose
of the FSA’s rules) have been managed by FPPE LLP This
15 a mited habtlity partnershup, whach 1s authorised and
regulated by the FSA and which has the same controling
members as the Manager The Manager has contmnued to
act as the Manager of the Company and as the investment
Manager of the Company’s Uhqud assets (being all AIM-
traded and other venture capital iInvestments)
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The Manager also provides or procures the provision of
accounting, secretanal, admimstrative and custodian services
to the Company The management agreement may be
termunated at any date by erther party giving twelve months’
notice of termination Under the management agreement,
the Manager recerves a fee of 2 5 per cent per annum of the
net assets of the Company If the management agreement 1s
terrmnated, the Manager 1s only entitled to the management
fees paid to 1t and any interest due on unpaid fees

In addition, the Manager receives an annual secretarial and
accounting fee that was imtially fixed at £33,816 1n 2006
and 15 revised annually to reflect the movement 1 RPI,
plus a vanable fee of O 125 per cent of the net assets of
the Company whech exceed £5 million The annual fee was
mtially capped at £102,212 per annum and 1s also revised
annually to reflect the movement in RPI

Annual runmung costs are capped at 3 5 per cent of the

net assets of the Company (excluding any performance fee
payable to the Manager and rrecoverable VAT), any excess
bewng refunded by the Manager by way of an adjustment to
1ts management fee

Durning the year the Management Engagemnent and
Remuneration Commuttee met to discuss and consider the
continuing appomntment of the Manager The Commuttee
reviewed and considered the agreements between the
Company and the Manager and the Manager’s performance
and after careful consideration the Commuttee recommended
to the Board that IS1S EP LLP should continue as Manager of
the Company It 15 the Board’s opimon that the continumng
appomtment of ISIS EP LLP on the terms agreed 1s n the best
interests of shareholders as a whole The Board believes that
the knowledge and expenence accumulated by the Manager
in the period since the launch of the first Baronsmead VCT
1n 1995 1s reflected 1n processes which are designed to find,
manage and reahise good quality growth busmnesses

Co-investment Scheme

The Scheme 1s intended to help attract, retain and incentivise
certain executive members of the Manager and reflects
schemes which are used elsewhere 1n the private equuty
industry in the UK It requures all the members of the
Scheme to invest their own capital into a proportion of the
ordinary shares of each and every unquoted investment
made by the Baronsmead VCTs (except those hife sciences
transactions where the Manager 1s not the lead mvestor)

The shares heid by the members of the Co-investment Scheme
in any portfolio company can only be sold at the same tune
as the investment held by the generalist Baronsmead VCTs In
addition, any prior ranking financial instruments, ¢ g loan
stock, held by the Baronsmead VCTs have to be repaid 1n full
prior to any gain accrung to the ordinary shares

As at 31 December 2011 forty-five executives of the
Manager had invested a total of approamately £149,000 1n
the ordinary shares of twenty-seven unquoted investments
through the Co-investment Scheme with respect to
investments attributable to Baronsmead VCT 3 plc The
amount mvested by Baronsmead VCT 3 plc in these twenty-
seven comparues totals approxamately £30 4 milhon As at
31 December 2011, eight of the nvestments 1n the Scheme
have been sold reahsing total proceeds of £18 9 mulhion for
Baronsmead VCT 3 pic and £1 ¢ milhon for the members of
the Co-mvestment Scheme

The Board reviews the operation of the Co-investment Scheme
at each quarterly valuation meeting The Co-investment
Scheme was also independently reviewed during the perod by
Singer Capital Markets who confirmed that the investments
were compliant with the Co-investment Scheme rules

Performance Incentive

A performance fee 1s payable to the Manager when the
total return on net proceeds of the ordinary share offers
exceeds 8 per cent per annum (sunple) on net funds rased
The performance fee payable n any one year 1s capped at
5 per cent of net assets

To the extent that the total return exceeds the threshold, a
performance fee (plus VAT) will be paid to the Manager of
10 per cent of excess performance No performance fee was
pad 1n 2010 and there 15 no performance fee payable for the
year to 31 December 2011

ISIS Equity Partners - Advisory Fees

During the year to 31 December 2011, 15I5 EP LLP recerved
net income of £71,250 (2010 £92,750) 1n connection

with advisory fees and incurred abort fees of £15,246
(2010 £13,286) with respect to investments attnbutable to
Baronsmead VCT 3

V(T Status Adviser

The Company has retained PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
('Pw(’) as its VCT Tax Status Advisers to advise it on
compliance with VCT requirements PwC review new
mnvestment opportunities, as appropriate, and reviews regularly
the investment portfolio of the Company PwC works
closely with the Manager but reports directly to the Board

Creditor Payment Policy

The Company’s payment policy 1s to settle investment
transactions in accordance with market practice and

to ensure settlement of suppler mnvoices in accordance
with stated terms At 31 December 2011, there were no
outstanding suppher mnvoices (2010 none)
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Environment

The Company seeks to conduct 1ts affairs responsibly and
environmental factors are, where appropnate, taken into
consideration with regard to investment decisions

Substantial Interests

At 17 February 2012 the Company was not aware of any
beneficial interest exceeding 3 per cent of crdinary share
capital in crculation

Going Concern

After making enquures, and bearing in mind the nature of
the Company ‘s business and assets, the Directors consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational exastence for the foreseeable future In arrnving
at this conclusion the Directors have considered the hquidity
of the Company and 1ts abihty to meet obhigations as they
fall due for a period of at least twelve months from the

date that these financial statements were approved As

at 31 Decernber 2011 the Company held cash balances &
mvestments i interest bearing securities and Money Market
Funds with a combined value of £10,662,000 Cash flow
projections have been reviewed and show that the Company
has sufficient funds to meet both its contracted expenditure
and 1ts discretionary cash outflows in the form of the share
buy-back programme and dividend policy The Company
has no external loan finance 1n place and therefore 1s not
exposed to any gearing covenants

Annual General Meeting

A notice for the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at 10 30 arn on Wednesday, 11 April 2012 at the
London Stock Exchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London
EC4M 715 15 set out on pages 45 to 49 The following
notes provide an explanation of Resolutions 6 to 11 which
together with Resolutions 1 to 5, will be proposed at the
meeting Resoluhons 1 to 8 will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions requuring the approval of more than 50 per cent
of the votes cast at the meeting and Resolutions 9 to 11 wall
be proposed as speaial resolutions requiring the approval

of 75 per cent of the votes cast at the meefing The Board
considers that the resolutions to be put to the meeting are
1n the best mterests of the Company and its shareholders

as @ whole The Directors will be voting 1n favour of all the
resolutions and the Board unarumously recommends that
shareholders do so as well

Auditors

KPMG Audit Pic have expressed their willingness to
continue 1 office as auditors and a resoluton proposing
theiwr re-appomntment will be submitted at the forthcomung
Annual General Meeting as will a resolution authensing the
Directors to determune the remuneration of the auditors

Authority to Allot Shares and Disapphcation
of Pre-Emption Rights

The authority proposed under Resoclufion 8 will authorise
Directors, until the fifth anniversary of the passing of the
resolution, to allot shares in the Company or grant rghts
to subscribe for or to convert any secunity into shares

m the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,799,926 representing 30 per cent of the 1ssued share
capital (excluding treasury shares) Any consequent increase
n the size of the Company will, mn the opion of the
Durectors, be in the interests of shareholders generally Any
1ssue proceeds wiil be available for investment mm hne with
the Company’s investment policy and may be used purchase
ordinary shares of the Company

The Directors mtend to use this authority for the purposes
described below under Resolution 9

Resolution 9 renews and extends, subject to the passing

of Resolution 8, the Directors’ authonty to allot equity
securities for cash without pre-emption nghts applying in
certain arcumstances Thas resolution will authonse the
Drrectors, untl the date falling 15 months after the date

of the passing of the resolution or, iIf earlier, the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company,

to 1ssue ordinary shares for cash without pre-emption
rights applying of (1) up to an aggregate nominal amount
representing 10 per cent of the Company s 1ssued share
capital (excluding treasury shares), (1) up to an aggregate
nominal amount representing 10 per cent of the 1ssued
share capital (excluding treasury shares) from fime tc fime
pursuant to a dividend reinvestment scheme (which may be
at a discount to NAV) and (w) up to an aggregate nominal
amount representing 10 per cent of the 1ssued share capital
(excluding treasury shares) from fime to time (which may
be at a discount to NAV) for allotments from time to time
This power will be exercised only if, in the opinion of the
Directors, it would be 1n the best interests of shareholders as
a whole and the proceeds of which may be used, in whole or
in part, to purchase shares in the Company
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Treasury Shares

The Company currently holds 7,622,317 ordinary shares
1n treasury representing 11 3 per cent of the Company's
1ssued ordinary shares If Resclution 9 1s passed, the

Board will consider itself permutted by shareholders to
reissue ordinary shares out of treasury through a dividend
remnvestment scheme or at a discount to the prevailing
NAV per ordinary share if the Board considers 1t n the

best interests of the Company to do so However, ordinary
shares will never be re-1ssued out of treasury at a discount
wider than the discount prevailing at the time the shares
were mnitially bought back by the Company The resolution
will also allow the Company to 1ssue shares out of treasury
without pre-emption rights applying

Currentily there 15 a two way secondary market in the
Company's shares It 15 the Board’s intention only to use the
mechamsm of re-1ssuing treasury shares when demand for
the Company s shares 15 greater than the supply available in
the market place Although shares re-1ssued from treasury
will not attract the 30 per cent mital income tax relef,

all further dividends wall be tax-free and if these shares

are subsequently sold no capital gains tax 1s payable by
qualifying shareholders

Directors’ Authority to Purchase Shares

The current authonty of the Company to make market
purchases of up to approximately 14 99 per cent of its
1ssued share capital exprres at the end of the Annual General
Meeting and Resolution 10 seeks renewal of such authonty
until the next Annual General Meeting (or the expiry of 15
months after the passmg of the resolution, if earher) The
price paid for shares will not be less than the nomnal value
nor more than the maximum amount permuitted to be paxd
in accordance wath the rules of the UK Listing Authonty
Thas power will be exercised only if, in the opimon of the
Directors, a repurchase would be 1n the best interests of
shareholders as a whole Any shares repurchased under thus
authonty will either be cancelled or held in treasury for
future re-sale in appropriate market conditions

Notice of General Meeting

The Board believes that it 15 in the best interests of
shareholders of the Company to have the ability to call
meetings on 14 days’ clear notice should a matter requure
urgency The Board 15 therefore proposing Resolution 11 to
approve the reduction in the mimimum notice period from
21 clear days to 14 clear days for all general meefings other
than annual general meetings The Directors do not intend
to use less than 21 clear days notice unless immediate action
15 required

By Order of the Board,
ISIS EP LLP

Secretary

100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

17 February 2012
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This Corporate Governance Statement forms part of the Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Codes

Arrangements 1n respect of corporate governance, appropriate
to a venture capital trust, have been made by the Board The
Board has considered the principles and recommendations of
the Association of Investment Compares’ Code of Corporate
Governance 1ssued m October 2010 (‘AIC Code’) by reference
to the AIC Corporate Governance Guide for investment
Companmnes (AIC Guide’) A copy of the AIC Code can be
found at www theaic co uk The AIC Code, as explaned

by the AIC Guide, addresses all the prmciples set out 1n the
UK Corporate Governance Code 1ssued by the Financial
Reporting Council in June 2010 (‘UK Code’), as well as
setting out additional principles and recommendations on
1ssues which are of speafic relevance to the Company A
copy of the UK Code can be found at www frc org uk

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code, and by reference to the
AIC Guude (which incorporates the LIK Code) will provide
better information to shareholders

Except as disclosed below, the Company complied
throughout the period with the recommendations of the AIC
Code and the relevant provisions of UK Code Since all the
Directors are non-executive the provisions of the UK Code 1n
respect of the role of the cluef executive are not relevant to
the Company and, likewise, the provisions of the UK Code
relating to directors’ remuneration are not relevant except m
so far as they relate speafically to non-executive directors
For the reasons set out 1n the AIC Gude, and in the preamble
to the UK Code, the Board considers that these provisions are
not relevant to the Company, being an externally managed
venture capital trust The Company has therefore not
reported further 1n respect of these provisions

Directors

In view of the requirement mn the Articles of Association that
all Directors be subject to retirement by rotation, the Board
considers that 1t 1s not appropriate for the Directors to be
appointed for a speafied term as recommended by principle
3 of the AIC Code and provision B 2 3 of the UK Code
However, the Board has agreed that each Director wall retire
and, if appropriate, seek re-election after each three years’
service, and annually after serving on the Board for more
than nine years

The Board, of which Mr Townsend 1s Chawrman, consists
solely of non-executive Directors and Mr Karney 1s Seruor
Independent Director All Directors are considered by the
Board to be independent of the Company ‘s Manager

As explained earlier, Mrs Nott 15 a director of Baronsmead
VCT 5 plc and Baronsmead VCT 2 plc, both of which

are managed by ISLS EP LLP The Board believes that
appointments to other companies managed by 15IS EP LLP
does not umpede 1ndependence of character and judgement
The Board also does not consider that a Director’s tenure
reduces thewr abihity to act independently The Board
believes that, as a whole, 1t comprises an appropnate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of background
and knowledge It also believes that each Director 15
independent in character and judgement and that there are
no relationshups or circumstances which are hikely to affect
the judgement of any Director

The Company has no executive Directors or employees

Division of Responsibilities

A management agreement between the Company and its
Manager, I5IS EP LLP, sets out the matters over which the
Manager has authority and the hmits above which Board
approval must be sought All other matters, including
strategy, investment and dividend pohaes, approval of
valuations, geaning, and corperate governance procedures,
are reserved for the approval of the Board of Directors The
Board meets at least quarterly and receives full information
about the Company ‘s investment performance, assets,
habilities and other relevant information 1n advance of
Board meetings The Manager, in the absence of exphat
mstructions from the Board, 1s empowered to exercise
discretion 1n the use of the Company’s voting rights All
shareholdings are voted, where practicable, in accordance
with the Manager’s own corporate governance policy, whuch
15 to seek to maxamuse shareholder value by constructive use
of votes at company meetings and by endeavounng to use
its influence as an investor with a principled approach to
corporate governance

Committees

Throughout the period a number of commuttees have
been n operation The commuttees are the Audit and

Rask Commmnittee, the Management Engagement and
Remuneration Commuttee and the Nommation Commuttee
The terms of reference of all the commuttees are available
from the Company on request

The Audit and Risk Committee, chaired by Mrs Nott,
comprises the full Board and operates within clearly
defined terms of reference The duties of the Audit and
Risk Commuttee include reviewing the annual and

mterun accounts, the system of internal controls, the
terms of appointment of the auditors together with thewr
remuneration, and ensuring that auditor objectivity and
mdependence 15 safeguarded 1n the provision of non—audit
services by the auditors It meets at least twice yearly and
provides a forum through which the auditors may report to
the Board of Directors
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The Management Engagement and Remuneration Comuruttee,
chaired by Mr Townsend, compnses the full Board and
reviews the remuneration and terms of appointment of the
Manager and the Boards’ fees The recommendations of the
AIC Code under Principle 5 state that the Chairman may be
a member of, but not chawr, the Management Engagement
and Remuneration Commuttee The Board, having considered
the recommendations, beheve that Mr Townsend rermnains
the most swtable Director to chawr the committee When
considering the chairmanship of the commuttee, the Board
took account of factors ncluding the size of the Board

and the remit of the commuttee, which extends to the
consideration of non-executve remuneration only Matters
relating to the remuneration of the Chairman are considered
by the commuittee 1n the absence of the Chairrman and under
the leadershup of the Seruor Independent Director

The Nomination Commuttee, chaired by Mr Townsend,
comprises the full Board and 1s convened for the purpose of
considering the appointment of additional Directors as and
when constdered appropriate In considering appointments
to the Board, the Normunation Comumuittee takes into account
the ongomng requirements of the Company and the need to
have a balance of skills and experience within the Board

The table below sets out the number of Board and Comrmittee meetings held during the year to 31 Decernber 2011 and the number

of meetings attended by each Director

Principle 7 of the AIC Code and Principle B 6 of the UK Code
recommends that the Board should undertake a formal and
ngorous annual evaluation of its own performance and that
of 1ts committees and mdividual directors It 1s the Board’s
policy to evaluate the performance of the Board, Commuttees
and individual Directors annually through an assessment
process, led by the Chairman, with the performance of the
Chairman being evaluated by the other Directors under

the leadership of the Semor Independent Director Mmdful

of the fact that an evaluation was not undertaken in 2010
due to changes to the composihon and charrmanship of the
Board, in 2011 the Board undertook a rigorous evaluation
of the performance of the Board, commuttees and mndnidual
Directors through an assessment process During this
process the Directors considered each Director’s independence
and discussed performance during the year, the exasting
corporate governance arrangements and areas where the
Board and individual Directors could develop

All of the Directors meet quarterly to consider 1n detail the
valuations of the unquoted investments in the Company’s
portfolio

Individual Directors may, at the expense of the Company,
seck independent professional advice on any matter that
concerns them in the furtherance of ther duties

Management
Engagement and

Board of Audit and Risk Remuneration Neminatten

Directors Committee Committee Committee

Held Attended Held Aitended Held  Attended Held  Attended

Anthony Townsend 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 1
Andrew Karney 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 1
Gillian Nott [ 4 2 2 2 1 1 0
lan Orrock 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 1
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Relations with Shareholders

The Company welcomes the views of shareholders and
places great importance on commurucation wath its
shareholders The Chairman and other Directors are
available to meet shareholders iIf required The Annual
General Meeting of the Company provides a forum both
formal and informal, for shareholders to meet and discuss
1ssues with the Directors and Manager of the Company

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the forthcomung
Annual General Meeting on 11 Apnl 2012 can be found in the
Notice of Meeting on pages 45 to 49 Shareholders seeking
to communucate with the Board can do so by contacting the
Investor Relations Manager 1n the first instance

Internal Controls

The Board 15 responsible for the Company’s system of
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness The
Board has therefore established an ongomg process designed
to meet the particular needs of the Company in managing
the risks to whech 1t 15 exposed The process adopted 1s one
whereby the Board 1dentifies all of the risks to whuch the
Company 15 exposed including, among others, market nsk,
mvestment risk, operational and regulatory risks whach are
recorded on a risk register The controls employed to mitigate
these nsks are idenfified and the residual nsks are rated
taking into account the impact of the mutigating factors

This register 1s updated at least twice a year and reports are
produced to the board ighlhighting any material changes

m the nature of each rnisk and where necessary corrective
action taken A formal annual review of the risks and related
controls 1s carned out by the Audit and Risk Commuttee

These procedures are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, rnisk and by their nature can provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance agamnst material misstatement
or loss The Board momtors the investment performance of
the Company in comparison to a benchmark index and to
comparable venture capital trusts at each Board meeting
The Board also reviews the Company ‘s activities since the
previous Board meeting to ensure that the Manager adheres
to the agreed investment pohicy and approved investment
guidelines and, if necessary, approve changes to such policy
and gwdelines

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and has concluded that the systems and procedures
employed by the Manager, provide sufficient assurance

that a sound system of internal control, whreh safeguards
shareholders” investment and the Company ‘s assets, 1s
maintained An internal audit function, specific to the
Company, 1s therefore considered unnecessary
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared this report, in accordance with the
requirements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 An ordinary resolution for the approval of thus report
wll be put to the members at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

The law requires the Company s auditors, KPMG Audit
Plc, to audit certamn of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such
‘The auditors’ opinton 1s included 1 the ‘Independent
Auditors’ Report’

Board of Directors and their Fees

The Board which 15 profiled on page 17 consists solely of
independent non-executive Directors and 1s considered to
be entirely independent The Management Engagement
and Remuneration Commuittee comprises all the Directors
of the Company and 15 chaired by Mr Townsend The
Company has no executive Directors, but the Management
Engagement and Remuneration Committee meets, at

least annually, to review the remuneration and terms of
appomtment of the Manager and the level of the Board’s
fees, 1n accordance with the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance The Company Secretary provides information
on comparative levels of directors fees to the Board in
advance of each review

During the year, the Management Engagement and
Remuneration Commuttee met to consider the level of
Directors’ fees and concluded that, having regard for the
amount and quality of work that Directors were requured
to undertake and having reviewed the level of remuneration
paid to the directors of companies that were directly
comparable withun the Company’s peer group, it was
appropriate to increase the Directors fees to £17,500 pa,
the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee’s fees to
£20,000 pa and the Chairman’s fee to £25,000 pa with
effect from 1 October 2011

Policy on Directors’ Fees

The Board’s policy 1s that the remuneration of non-executrve
Directors should reflect the expertence of the Board as a
whole, be fair and comparable to that of other relevant
venture capital trusts that are simular in s1ze and have
similar mvestment objectives and structures Furthermore
the level of remuneration should be sufficient to attract and
retain the Directors needed to oversee properly the Company
and to reflect the specific circumstances of the Company, the
duties and responsibilities of the Directors and the value and
amount of tume comrmutted to the Company s affairs 1t 1s
mntended that this policy will continue for the year ending
31 Decernber 2012 and subsequent years

Directors® Service Contracts

It 15 the Board's policy that Drrectors do not have service
contracts, but new Directors are provided with a letter of
appomntment The terms of Directors’ appointments provide
that Directors should retire and be subject to election at

the first Annual General Meeting after theiwr appomtment
Directors are thereafter obliged to retire by rotation and, if
willing, to offer themselves for re-election by shareholders at
least every three years after that In accordance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, Directors who have served on
the Beard for more than 9 years must offer themselves for
re-election on an annual basis There 15 no notice period and
no provision for compensation upon early termunation of
appointment Below 15 a table which sets out each Director’s
date of appowintment and due date for re-elechon/election

Date of Due date for

onginal Re-election/
Director Appointment Election
Anthony Townsend 4 August 2009 AGM 2012
Andrew Karney 10 January 2001 AGM 2012
Gillian Nott 10 January 001 AGM 2012
lan Orrock 21 October 2010 AGM 2013




Directors’ Remuneration Report

Company Performance

The Board 1s responsible for the Company’s investment
strategy and performance, although the management of the
Company ‘s investment portfolio 15 delegated to the Manager
through the management agreement, as referred to in the
‘Report of the Directors’ The graph below compares, for the
five years ended 31 December 2011, the percentage change
over each period i the total return (assuming all dividends
are remvested) to ordnary shareholders compared to the
percentage change over each period 1n total shareholder
return on a notional investrent made up of shares of the
same kind and number as those by reference to which the
FTSE All-Share Index 1s calculated This mndex was chosen for
comparison purposes, as it represents a widely understood
broad equity market index agamnst which investors can
measure the relative performance of the Company An
explanation of the performance of the Company 1s grven in
the Chairman’s Statement and Manager’'s Review

Ordinary Share price total return and the FTSE All-Share Index total
return performance graph

Directors’ Emoluments for the Year (Audited)

The Directors who served in the year received the following
emoluments 1n the form of fees

Fees Fees
2011 2010
£ £
Anthony Townsend* 23,875 20,145
Andrew Karney 16,000 15,500
Gillian Nott 16,625 15,500
lan Orrock® 16,000 3,001
Mark Cannon Brookes? - 8,978
Robert Owen* - 11,506
Total 72,500 74,630
# Appoinied Chairman on 18 May 2010
* Appointed on 21 October 2010
t Retired on 18 May 2010
~ Resigned 28 September 2010
Approvediby the Board of Directorsesd signed by

Anthony Townsend
Charman of the Management Engagement and
Remuneration Commuttee

17 February 2012
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Statement of Directors’” Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each finanaial year Under that law they have elected
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards

The financ:al statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial staternents, the Directors are requured to
s select suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgments and estumates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (“UK GAAP“) have been followed, subject to any maternal departures
disclosed and explamned in the financal statements, and

s  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial staternents comply with the Compamies Act
2006 They have general responsibility for talung such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other wrregularities

Under apphcable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report (including Busimess
Review), Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on
the Company ‘s website, www baronsmeadvet3 co uk Visitors to the website should be aware that legislation in the UK
govermung the preparation and dissemunation of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of
the Annual Financial Report

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

¢ the financial statements, prepared i accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and far view
of the assets, habilities, financial posihion and profit or loss of the Company, and

e the Report of the Directors includes a fawr review of the development and performance of the busimess and the position of
the Company together wath a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face

Oh behalf of the Board,
Anthony Townsend
Chairman

17 February 2012




Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc

We have audited the financal statements of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2011 which comprnise the Income
Statement, the Reconahation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The
financal reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounhng Practice)

Thus report 1 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparmes Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are requared to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrtted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for ths report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibihties set out on page 30, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financal statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements
1 accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (LK and Ireland) Those standards requure us to comply wath the
Auditing Practices Board’s {APR’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at www fre org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opimon on financial statements
In our opimon the finanaal statements

e ge a true and fawr view of the state of the Compary’s affairs as at 31 Decernber 2011 and of its profit for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared mn accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requuirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimuon
» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance wath the Compames Act 2006, and

+ the informaton given 1n the Report of the Directors for the financal year for which the finanaal staternents are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following

Under the Compamnes Act 2006 we are requuired to report to you of, in our opuion

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from branches not visited by us, or

s the finanaal staternents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not m agreement with the accounting records
and returns, or

s certam disclosures of Pirectors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the mformaton and explanahons we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

»  the Durectors’ staternent, set out on page 23, 1n relation to gomng concern,

*» the part of the Corperate Governance Staternent relating to the Company’s comphance with the mine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code speafied for our review, and

» certamn elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directorg remuneration

g)\ \VVVV\’\
Simon Pashby (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutosy Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

Edinburgh

17 February 2012




Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2011

won 2010
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Notes fro00 £'o00 o000 Erooo £ 000 (&l ]
Unrealised gains on investments 8 - 1,403 1,403 - 4,951 4.951
Realised gains on investments 8 - 1,824 1,824 - 1757 1,757
Income 2 1,963 — 1,963 2,407 - 2,407
Investment management fee 3 (385) (1,158} {1,540} {380) {1,140) (1,520}
Other expenses 4 (365) - (365) (360) - (360}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,113 2,092 3,285 1,667 5,668 7,235
Taxauon on ordinary activities 5 {244} 244 - {412) 812 -
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 969 2,316 3,285 1,155 5,980 7,235
Retum per ordinary share
Basic 7 161p 385p 5 46p 209p 9 98p 12 07p

The “Total’ column of this statement Is the profit and loss account of the Company

All revenue and capital items 1n this statement derive from continuing operations

No operations were acquired or discontinued In the year

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those disclosed in the income Statement thesefore a separate statement of total recognised gains and

losses has not been prepared

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year ended 31 December 2011

01 26

Notes £roo0 f 000

Opening shareholders’ funds 64,643 52,878
Profit for the year 3.285 1,235
Cross proceeds of share 1ssues - 8,165
Purchase and sale of shares for treasury 12 (613) (1.357)
Expenses of share 1ssue and buybacks 12 (&) (aa1)
Dividends paid 6 (7.219) 1,837
Closing shareholders’ funds 60,095 54,643

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements




Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2011

M 2010
Notes froo0 £'000
fixed assets
Investments 8 59,312 63,407
Current assets
Debtors -] 562 461
Cash at bank and on deposit 683 1,268
1,245 1,729
Crediters (amounts falling due within one year) 10 (a62) (493)
Net curent assets 783 1,236
Net assets 60,095 64,643
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1 6,762 6,762
Share premium account 12 15,012 15,012
Capital redemption reserve 12 10,862 10,862
Capital reserve 12 24,262 24,541
Revaluation reserve 12 2,876 6,182
Revenue reserve 12 311 B84
Equity shareholders’ funds 13 60,095 64,643
Net asset value per share
- Basic 13 100 16p 106 Gop
- Treasury 13 99 16p 105 32p

The financial statements on pages 32 to 34 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

Anthony Townsend (Chairman)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet

(Bve—d




Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 20m

won 2010

Notes f'oo0 froo0
Operating activities
Investment income receved 1,787 2,099
Deposit interest recewed 3 5
Other income receved 63 -
Investment management fees (1,570} (1,446)
Other cash payments (357 (a26)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating acuvines 15 (4) 232
Caplital expenditure and financial investment
Purchases of investments (91,893} (76,980
Disposals of investments 99,215 1.447
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from capital expenditure and financial investment 7.322 (5,533)
Diwvidends
Equity dividends paid 6 (.21 (839
Net cash Inflow/(outflow) before financing 34 (2.138)
Financing
Gross proceeds of share 1ssues - 8,165
Purchase and sale of shares for treasury (612) (.37
Expenses on share 1ssue and buybacks ) (435)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing (619) 6,373
Decrease In cash in the year (585) (765)
Reconciltation of net cash flow to movement in net cash
Decrease n cash (585) (765)
Opening cash at bank and on deposit 1,268 2,033
Closing cash at bank and on deposit T'] 683 1,268

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement




Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

These finanaal statements have been prepared under UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP”) and 1n accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice {“SORP”) for investment
trust comparues and venture capital trusts 1ssued by the Assoaation
of Investment Comparnes (*AlC*) in January 2009, and on the
assumption that the Company mamntains VCT status

The Company 1s no longer an investment company as defined by
Section B33 of the Compares Act 2006, as investment company
status was revoked on 4 February 2004 in order to permt the
distribution of capital profits

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Presentation of the Income Statement

In order to better reflect the activities of a VCT and m accordance
with the SORP supplementary information which analyses the
mncome statement between items of a revenue and capital nature has
been presented alongside the income statement

Profit/(loss) on ordinary achwities after taxabion 1s the measure the
Directors believe approprate in assessing the Company’s compliance
waith certain requirements set out 1n Section 274 of the Income Tax
Act 2007

(b} valuation of investments

Purchases or sales of investments are recogmsed at the date
of transaction

Investments are valued at far value For AIM traded, hsted secunties
and collechve investment vehicles this 1s either nd price or the last
traded price, depending on the convention of the exchange on which
the investment 15 traded

In respect of unquoted investments, these are fair valued by

the Drectors using methodology which 15 consistent wath the
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation (“IPEV”)
gudelines This means mnvestments are valued using an earmungs
multiple, which has a discount or prerum appled which adjyusts
for points of dufference to appropnate stock market or comparable
transaction multiples Alternative methods of valuation wall include
applhication of an arm’s length third party valuation, a provision on
cost or a net asset value basis

Gains and losses ansing from changes 1n the fair value of the
mvestments are inchuded in the income statement for the period as a
capital item Transaction costs on acquisition are included wathin the
wuttal recogrution and the profit or loss on dispesal 1s calculated net
of transachon costs on disposal

() Income

Interest income on loan stock and dividends on preference shares
are accrued on a daily basis Provision 1s made against this mcome
where recovery 1s doubtful Where the terms of unquoted loan
stocks only requure interest or a redernption premuwum to be pad
on redempton, the interest and redemption prermum 1s recogrused
as 1ncome once redemption 1s reasonably certain Until such date
interest 1s accrued daily and included withan the valuation of

the investment

Income from fixed interest securities and deposit mterest 15 included
on an effective interest rate basis

Dividends on quoted shares are recogrised as income on the date
that the related mnvestments are marked ex-drvidend and where
no dividend date 15 quoted, when the Company ‘s right to recerve
payment 15 established

(d) Expenses

All expenses are recorded on an accruals basis

(e) Revenue/capltal

The revenue column of the income statement includes all income
and expenses The capital column accounts for the reahsed and
unreahsed profit and loss on investments and the proportion of
management fee charged to capital

(D Issue costs

Issue costs are deducted from the share prerum account

(2) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 15 recogrused in respect of all tming differences
that have oniginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an oblhgation to pay more, or
the nght to pay less, tax in future have occurred at the balance sheet
date This 1s subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised

if 1t 1s considered more hkely than not that there will be switable
profits from whuch the future reversal of the underlying turung
differences can be deducted Tiuming differences are differences ansing
between the Company’s taxable profits and 1ts results as stated
the finanaal statements whuch are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent penods

(h) Capital reserves

(1) Capital Reserve

Gains and losses on realisabion of investments of a capital
nature are dealt with in this reserve Purchase of the
Company s own shares to be either held 1n treasury or
cancelled are also funded from this reserve 73 per cent
of management fees are allocated to the capital reserve 1n
accordance with the Board’s expected split between long
term income and cap:tal returns

) Revaluation Reserve

Changes 1n fair value of unreahsed investments, are dealt
with in thus reserve



Notes to the Accounts

2 Income
2011 2610
£’000 fro00
Income from investmentst
UK franked b 195
UX unfranked 1,242 1,872
Redemplion premium 374 335
1,897 2,402
Other incomes
Deposit interest 3 5
other income 63 -
Total income 1,563 2,407
Tetal income comprises
ividends 282 195
Interest 1,681 2,212
1,963 2,407
Income from investments
AlM-traded & listed secunties 300 234
Unquoted securities 1,588 2,168
1,897 2,402

t All Investments have been designated fair value through profit or loss on imitial recogmition, therefore all investment income anses on Investments at far
value through profit or loss
# Other income on financial assets not designated fair value through profit or loss

3 Investment management fee

2011 2010

£ro00 E ooo

investment management fee 1,540 1,520
performance fee - -
1,540 1,520

For the purposes of the revenue and capital columns 1n the income statement, the management fee has been allocated 25 per cent to revenue
and 75 per cent to capital, in line with the Board's expected long term return in the form of income and capital gains respectively from the
Company’s mvestment portfoho

The management agreement may be terminated by exther party giving twelve months nohce of terrmnation The Manager, IS1S EP LLE
recelves a fee of 2 5 per cent per annum of the net assets of the Company, calculated and payable on a quarterly basis

The Manager 15 entitled to a performance fee when the total return on net proceeds of the ordinary share offers exceeds B per cent per annum
{on a symple rather than compound basis) on net funds raised To the extent that the Total Return exceeds this threshold, a performance fee
{plus VAT) will be pard to the Manager of 10 per cent of the excess The performance fee payable in any one year wall be capped at 5 per

cent of the Shareholders’ funds at the end of the calculabion period No performance fee 1s payable for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010 £ml)

In addition, the Manager receives an annual secretaral and accounting fee that was wutally fixed at £33,816 1n 2006 and 15 revised annually
to reflect the movement in RPI, plus a vanable fee of 0 125 per cent of the net assets of the Company which exceed £5 milhon The annual
fee was mtrally capped at £102,212 per annum and 1s also revised annually to reflect the movement in RPI 1t 1s chargeable 100 per cent

to revenue

Amounts payable to the Manager at the year end are disclosed in note 10
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4 Other expenses

Fo1a] 2010
000 000
Directors’ fees 3 74
Secretarial and accounting fees 13 109
Remuneratien of the auditors and their associates
- audnt 22 16
- other services supplied pursuant to legislation (intenm review) 5 5
- other services supplied relating to taxation 9 5
Tra!l Commuission - (19
Other 143 168
365 360

From 1 January 2011 to 30 September 2011, the Chairman received £23,500 per annum (2010 £23,500) Each of the other Directors
received £15,500 per annum (2010 £15,500) From 1 October 2011 to 31 Decernber 2011, the Chairman recerved £25,000 per annum and
the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Commuttee received £20,000 per annum Each of the other Directors recerved £17,500 per annum

Charges for other services provided by the auditors in the year ended 31 December 2011 were tn relatton to the interim review and tax
comphance work (including tXBR1) The Audit and Risk Commmuttee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit servaces to ensure that
independence 15 mamntaned The Directors consider the auditors were best placed to provade these services

& Tax on ofdinary activities
5a Analysis of charge for the year

o 2010
£'o00 ‘o000

UK corporation tax - -

The income statement shows the tax charge allocated between revenue and capital

sb Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporaton tax in the UK for a company The differences are explamned below

2011 2010

Revenue Caphtal Total Revenue Capital Total

E'o00 E'oae £'o00 £ 000 f'oo0 E'o00

Profit on ordinary acuvities before taxation 1,213 1.072 3,285 1,667 5,568 7.235
Corporation tax at rate of 26 5 per cent (2010 28 per cent ) 3 549 87 467 1,559 2,026

Effect of

Non-taxable dividend income Go - (4 (55) - (55)
Non taxable investment gains - (855) (855) - (1,878) (1,878}
Marginal relief (€)) 3 - - - -
Losses carned forward/(uulised) - 59 59 - (93) (93)
Tax charge for the year (note 5a) 244 (244) - 412 (a12) -

At 31 December 2011 the Company had surplus management expenses of £1,856,000 (2010 £1,498,000) which have not been recogrused
as a deferred tax asset Thus 1s because the Company 1s not expected to generate taxable income in a future period 1n excess of the deduchble
expenses of that future period and, accordingly, the Company 1s unlikely to be able to reduce future tax habihties through the use of exashng
surplus expenses Due to the Company’s status as a VCT, and the intention to continue meeting the condiions required to obtain approval
i the foreseeable future the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains and losses ansing on the revaluation or disposal

of investments
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6 Dlvidends

asn

2010

Revenue Caphat Totat Revenue Capital Total
E'oon E'ooo £'000 f'oo0 35 £ coo
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
For the year ended 31 December 2010
- Intenim dividend of 3 op per ordinary share paid on 15 September 2010 - - - 673 1,164 1,837
- Final dividend of 4 sp per ordinary share paid on 8 April 2011 546 1,183 1,729 - - -
For the year ended 31 December 201
- First intenm dividend of 3 op per ordinary share paid on 29 September 2011 389 1,407 1,796 - - -
- Second intenm dvidend of 4 sp per ordinary share paid on 5 December 2011 597 2,092 1,689 - - -
1,532 5,682 7.214 673 1,164 1,837

In the 2011 financial year Baronsmead VCT 3 paid a second interim dniadend 1n heu of a final dividend which resulted in three dividend

payments during the year

7 Retums per share

The 5 46p return per ordinary share (2010 12 07p return) 1s based on the net profit from ordinary achwities after taxation of £3,285,000

(2010 £7,235,000 profit) and on 60,112,945 ordwnary shares (2010 59,933,988), being the waghted average number of shares in

arculation during the year

8 [nvestments

All investments are designated fair value through profit or loss at uutial recegrution, therefore all gains and losses anse on iInvestments

designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financral Reporting Standard 29 ‘Financial Instruments Disclesures” (the Standard) requures an analysis of investments valued at fair value
based on the relabihty and sigmificance of the information used to measure thewr far value The level 1s determined by the lowest (that 1s the
least reliable or independently observable) level of input that 1s sigmficant to the far value measurement for the individual investment 1n ats

entirety as follows

*  Level 1 - mvestrnents whose prices are quoted i an active rmarket

e Level 2 - investments whose farr value 15 based directly on observable current market prices or mdirectly being denved from market prices

* Level 3 - mnvestments whose fair value 15 determuned using a valuahon techruque based on assumphons that are not supported by observable

current market prices or based on observable market data

0

2010

E'o00 £roon

Level 1
uisted interest beanng secunties 9,979 16,287
Investments traded on AIM 14,402 12,522
Investments listed on LSE 1,318 1,561
Investment traded on NYSE - 179
25,699 30,549

Level 2
Collecuve investment vehicle (Wood Street Microcap Investment Fund) 2,826 2,123

Level 3
Unquoted investments 30,787 30,735
59,312 63,407
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8 Investments (continued)

201 2010
£ ooe £ o0
Equity shares 28,324 18,170
Loan notes 21,009 28,790
Preference shares - 160
Interest beaning secunties 9.979 16,287
59.312 63,407
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Listed
nterest Collective
bearing Traded Listed Traded Investment
securities on AfM on LSE on NYSE vehicle Unquoted Total
£'oo0 £'o00 Erooo £'000 Erooo £'o00 £'000
Opening book cost 16,287 15,437 1,204 157 1,825 22,315 57,225
Opeming unzealised (depreniation)fappreciation - (2,515) 357 12 298 8,420 6,182
Opening valuation 16,287 12,522 1,561 179 2,123 30,735 63,407
Movements n the year

Reclassification in year - (525) 525 - - - -
Purchases at cost 81,924 2,469 - - 700 6,800 91,893
Sales - proceeds (88,232) (323 - (109} - (10,551) (99,215
- realised (losses)/gains on sales - () - (70} - 1,906 1,824
Unrealised gains realised dunng the year - 263 - 2 - 4,424 4,709
Increasef(decrease) in unrealised appreciation - 7 (768) (22) 3 (z,526) (3.306)
9.979 14,402 1,318 - 1,816 30,787 59.312
Clostng book cost 9,979 17,310 1,729 - 2,525 24,893 56,436
Closing unrealised (depreciation)/appreciation - (2,508) (a11) - 301 5,894 2,876
2,979 14,402 1,318 - 2,816 30,787 59,312

Duning the year the Company incurred brokerage costs on purchases of £1,800 (2010 £1,600) and brokerage costs on sales of £1,000
(2010 £4,000) 1n respect of ordinary sharcholder interests

The gains and losses included in the above table have all been recogrused in the income statemnent on page 32

The Standard requires disclosure, by class of financal instruments, if the effect of changing one or more inputs to reasonably possible
alternative assumptions would result 1n a significant change to the fair value measurement The information used in deterrmination of the
fair value of Level 3 investments 1s chosen wath reference to the speafic underlying acircumstances and positon of the investee company The
portfoho has been reviewed and both downside and upside reasonable possible alternatives have been dentified and applied to the valuation
of each of the unquoted wnvestments Applying the downside alternatives the value of the unquoted mnvestments would be £2 8 mullhon or

9 2 per cent lower Using the upside alternative the value would be increased by £2 4 milhon or 7 8 per cent
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9 Debtors
0 2070
E 000 £ coo
Prepayments and accrued income 562 447
Other debtors - 14
562 461
10 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
won 2010
f'o00 E'oco
Management, secretanal and accounting fees due to the Manager 405 435
Other creditors 57 58
462 493
11 Called-up share capital
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares £ coo
67,619,851 ordinary shares of 1op each listed at 31 December 2010 6,762
67,619,851 ordinary shares of 10p each listed at 31 December 2011 6,762
6,977,317 ordinary shares of 10p each held in treasury at 31 December 2010 (598)
235,000 ordinary shares of 10p each sold during the year previously held in treasury 24 i
880,000 ordinary shares of 10p each repurchased during the year and held i treasury (88) ‘
7,622,377 ordinary shares of 10p each held In treasury at 31 December 2011 (763) |
\
59,997,534 ordinary shares of 10p each In circulation at 31 December 2011 6,000 i
|

As at 16 February 2012 the Company’s 1ssued share capital was 67,619,851 ordiary shares of 10 pence each, of which 7,622,317 were
held in treasury The number of shares in circulation was 59,997,534 ordinary shares carrying one vote each |

The capital of the Company 15 managed 1n accordance with its investment policy, in pursuit of 1ts investment objectives, both of which are
detailed in the Report of the Directors on pages 18 and 19

Treasury shares

The Companies (Acquusibion of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 came into force on 1 Decernber 2003 and allowed the
Company to hold shares acquired by way of market purchase as treasury shares, rather than having to cancel them Shareholders have
previously approved a resolution permatting the Company to 1ssue shares from treasury at a discount to the prevaling NAV if the Board
considers it in the best interests of the Company to do so However, treasury shares wall not be sold at a discount wader than the discount
prevaling at the time the shares were imtially bought back by the Company It 15 the Board’s mtenhion only to use the mechamsm of re-
1s5uing treasury shares when demand for the Company 's shares 1s greater than the supply available in the market place Such 15s5ues would
be captured under the terms of the Prospectus Directive and subject to the annual cap of 5 rullion Euros on funds raised before requining a
full prospectus, although they would not be considered by HM Revenue & Customs to be new shares entithng the purchaser to imtial income
tax rehef, and therefore shares are unlikely to be 1ssued from treasury in the same year as a ““top up” offer for subscription

The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements

Where shares are bought back but not cancelled the 1ssued share capital remains unchanged The NAV 15 calculated by using the number of
shares i 1ssue less those bought back and held n treasury
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12 Reserves
Capital
Share redemnption Capital Revaluation Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve

£’vo0 £’ooc o000 €000 £ 000
At 31 December 2010 15,012 10,862 24,941 6,182 884
Purchase and sale of shares for treasury - - (613) - -
Expenses of share 1ssue and buybacks - - (6) - -
Reallocatien of pnor year unreahised gains - - 4,709 (4,709) -
Realised gain on disposal of investments* - - 1,824 - -
Ket increase in value of investments* — - - 1,403 -
Management fee capialised* - - {1,155} - -
Taxation relief from capital expenses* - - 244 - -
Revenue profit on ordinary activities after taxauon™ - - - - 969
bwvidends paid in the year - - (5.682) - (1,532)
At 31 December 2011 15,012 10,862 24,162 2,876 321

At 31 Decemnber 2011, reserves distributable by way of dindend amounted to £21,264,000 (2010 £23,587,000), compnising the capital
reserve and revenue reserve less the net unreahsed loss on those level one investments whose prices are quoted 1n an achve market and
deemned readily realisable

* The total of these 1tems 15 £3,285,000 whach agrees to the total profit on ordinary activities after taxation on page 32

13 Net asset value per share

The net asset vatue per share and the net asset values attributable to the ordinary shares at the year end are calculated 1n accordance wnth
their entitlements in the Articles of Association and were

Net asset value

Number of shares per share attributable Net asset value attributable
201 2010 011 2010 o 010
number number pence pence E'oo0 f'o00
ordinary shares {bastc) 59.997.534 60,642,534 100 16 106 60 60,095 64,643
ordinary shares (treasury) 67,619,851 67,619,851 9916 105 32 67,050 71,219

Basic net asset value per share 1s based on net assets at the year end, and on 59,997,534 (2010 60,642,534) ordinary shares, being the
respechive number of shares 1n arculation at the year end

The treasury net asset value per share as at 31 December 2011 incheded ordinary shares held in treasury valued at the mud share price of
91 25p at 31 December 2011 (2010 94 25p)
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14 Analysis of changes in cash

2011 00

frooo E'ooo
Beginning of year 1,268 2,033
Net cash outflow (s85) (765)
As at 31 December 2011 683 1,268
15 Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activitles before taxation to net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

w0nu 2010

t’o00 E coo
Profit on ordinary actsvities before taxation 3,285 7.235
Gains on investments (3.227) (6,708}
tncrease 1n debtors (o1} (117)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (11} 23
Income reinvested - (201}
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operaung activities (74} 232

16 Contingencles, guarantees and financial commitments

At 31 December 2011 there were no contingent habihties, guarantees or financial commitments of the Company

17 Significant interests

There are no interests of 20 per cent or more of any class of share capital 1n any underlytng holdings 1n investee companes

Further information on the sigmficant interests 15 disclosed on pages 9 to 11

18 Financial instruments

The Company'’s financal instruments comprise equuty and fixed interest investments, cash balances and kqud resources including debtors
and creditors The Company holds finanaal assets in accordance wath its investment policy to invest 1n & diverse portfolio of UK growth

businesses, whether unquoted or traded on AIM

Fixed asset investments (see note 8) are valued at fair value For quoted securties this 15 aither bid price or the last traded price, depending on the
convention of the exchange on which the investment 1s quoted In respect of unquoted investments, these are fair valued by the Directors (using
rules consistent with IPEV The fair value of all other financial assets and habilities 1s represented by ther carrywng value in the balance sheet

The Company s investing achvities expose 1t to various types of nisk that are assocated with financal mstruments and markets in whach 1t

invests The most important types of financal risk to which the Company s exposed are market nsk, credit nsk and hqudity nsk

The nature and extent of the finanmal mstruments outstanding at the balance sheet date and the nisk management policies employed by the

Company are discussed 1n notes 19 to 22
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19 Market risk

Market nsk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes interest rate nsk and price nsk

The Company s strategy on the management of investment risk 1s dnven by the Company’'s investment objective as outlined in note 18
The management of market risk 1s part of the investment management process and 1s typical of private equity mmvestment The portfolio

15 managed 1n accordance with policies and procedures 1n place as descrbed 1n more detail in the Report of the Directors on pages 18 to 20,
with an awareness of the effects of adverse price movemnents through detailed and continuing analysis, with an objective of maxamsing
overall returns to shareholders Investments in unquoted stocks and AIM traded compames, by their nature, mvolve a lugher degree of nsk
than investments i the main market Some of that risk can be mitigated by diversifying the portfolio across business sectors and asset
classes The Company’s overall market positions are momtored by the Board on a quarterly basis

Details of the Company’s investment portfolio at the balance sheet date are disclosed in the schedule of investments set out on pages 9 to 11
An analysis of investments between debt and equity instruments 1s disclosed n note 8

31 per cent (2010 25 per cent ) of the Company ‘s mnvestments are listed on the London Stock Exchange, traded on AIM or invested through
Wood Street Microcap Fund A 5 per cent increase in stock prices as at 31 December 2011 would have increased the net assets attributable
to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by £927,000 {2010 £819,000), an equal change 1n the opposite directicn
would have decreased the net assets attnmbutable to the Company ‘s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an equal amount

52 per cent (2010 48 per cent ) of the Company's mvestments are in unquoted comparues held at fair value Valuabhon methodology includes
the application of earming multiples derived from either histed companies with simular charactenstics or recent comparable transactions
Therefore the value of the unquoted element of the portfolic may also be indirectly affected by price movements on the histed exchanges A
5 per cent increase in the valuations of unquoted investments at 31 December 2011 would have increased the net assets attnbutable to the
Company s sharcholders and the total profit for the year by £1,539,000 (2010 £1,537,000), an equal change in the opposite direchon would
have decreased the net assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an ¢qual amount

20 Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2011 £6,799,000 (2010 £9,387,000) fixed rate securities were held by the Company As a result, the Company 1s subject to
exposure to farr value mterest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates

At 31 December 2011 £21,009,000 {2010 £17,611,000) fixed rate loan notes were held by the Company The weaghted average coupon
rate for the loan note secunties 15 ¢ 34 per cent as at 31 December 2011 (2010 8 48 per cent) Due to complexaty of the instruments and
uncertainty surrounding tunung of redemption the weaghted average time for whach the rate 15 fixed has not been calculated

The table below summarises weighted average effecive interest rates for the fixed interest-bearing financial instruments

0m 2019
Welghted Weighted
Total Weighted average Total Weighted average
fixed average time for fixed average time for
rate interest  which rate rate nterest  which rate
porttolis rate I8 fixed pontolio rate 15 fixed
£'oo0 % days £ra0o * days
Fixed rate
Fixed Interest instruments 6,799 02 3 9.387 a5 12

Floating rate

When the Company retans cash balances, the majority of cash 1s ordinarily held on interest bearing deposit accounts and, where appropnate,
within an interest bearng money market open ended investment company (“OEIC*) The benchmark rate which determunes the interest
payments received on interest bearing cash balances 1s the bank base rate which was 0 5 per cent as at 31 December 2011 (2010 0 5 per
cent )

2011 2010
f'oon £'ooe

Floating rate

Floating rate instruments (“OEIC™) 3,180 6,900

Cash at bank and on deposit 683 1,268

3,863 3,168
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21 Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument wall fail to discharge an oblhigatien or commutment that it has entered into
with the Company The Investment Manager has in place a momtoring procedure m respect of counterparty nsk which 1s reviewed on an
ongoing basis The carryaing amounts (value) of financial assets best represents the maxamum credit nsk exposure at the balance sheet date

At the reporting date, the Company ‘s financial assets exposed to credit nsk amounted to the following

w1 010

€000 £ ooo

Investments In fixed interest instruments 6,799 9,387
Investments in floating rate instruments 3,180 6,900
Cash at bank and on deposnt 683 1,268
Interest, dividends and other recevables 562 461
11,224 18,016

Credit nsk ansing on fixed mterest instruments 1s mitigated by mvesting in UK Government Stock

Credit nisk arising on floating rate instruments 1s mitigated by investing in money market open ended investment companies managed by
BlackReck and JPMorgan Chase (“JPM”} Credit nisk on unquoted loan stock held within unlisted investments 1s considered to be part of
market risk as disclosed 1n note 19

Credit nsk ansing on transactions with brokers relates to transachons awaring settlement Risk relahing to unsettled transactions 1s
considered to be small due to the short settlement period mvolved and the lugh credit quahty of the brokers used The Board momitors the
quahbty of service provided by the brokers used to further mibgate thus risk

Credit nisk on fixed interest investments 1 unhsted compames 15 managed as part of the Company’s main mvestment management procedures

All the assets of the Company which are traded on a recogmsed exchange are held by JPM, the Company's custodian The Board momntors the
Company ‘s risk by reviewing the custodian’s internal control reports

Substanhally all of the cash held by the Company 1s held by JPM The Board momntors the Company ‘s nisk by reviewing regularly JPM's
internal control reports as previously descnbed Should the credit quahty or the financial position of JPM detenorate signuficantly the
Investment Manager wall seek to move the cash holdings to another bank

There were no sigruficant concentrations of credit nsk to counterparties at 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010 No indivadual
mvestment exceeded 9 4 per cent of the net assets attributable to the Company ‘s shareholders at 31 December 2011 (2010 8 8 per cent )

22 Liquidity risk

The Company’s financial instruments include investments 1n unquoted compames whach are not traded in an orgamised public market as
well as AIM-traded equity investments both of which generally may be liquud As a result, the Company may not be able to hqudate
quickly some of its investments 1 these instruments at an amount close to thewr farr value in order to meet its hqudity requirements, or to
respond to speafic events such as deteroration in the creditworthiness of any particular 1ssuer

The Company s hquidity sk 1s managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager i accordance wath pohaes and procedures 1n
place as descnbed in the Report of the Drrectors on page 19 The Company ‘s overall hquidity risks are monitored on a quarterly basis by
the Board

The Company maintains suffinent investments in cash and readily reahsable interest bearing securihies to pay accounts payable and accrued
expenses At 31 December 2011 these investments were valued at £10,662,000 (2010 £17,555,000)

23 Related parties

Related party transachons include Management, Secretanal, Accounting and Performance fees payable to the Manager, 1SIS EP LIP as
disclosed 1n notes 3 and 4, and fees paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 4 In addibion, the Manager operates a Co-Investment Scheme,
detailed 1n the Report of the Directors on page 22, whereby employees of the Manager are entitled to participate in certain unquoted
investments alongside the Company

24 Post balance sheet events

On 12 January 2012 the Company launched an offer for subscription to raise just less than €5 milhon whach 15 the equivalent of
£4 135 milhon Thus offer became fully subseribed on 7 February 2012







Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the eleventh Annual General Meeting of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc wall be held at the London
Stock Exchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LS on Wednesday, 11 April 2012 at 10 30 am for the purposes
of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolutions, resolutions 1 to 8 being proposed as ordinary
resolutions and resolutions 9 to 11 being proposed as special resolutions

1 That the Report and Accounts for the year to 31 December 2011 be received
That the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year to 31 December 2011 be approved

That Anthony Townsend be re-elected as a director of the Company

2
3
4 That Andrew Karney be re-elected as a director of the Company
5 That Gilhan Nott be re-elected as a director of the Company

6

That KPMG Audit Plc, Chartered Accountants, be re-appownted as independent auditors
7 That the directers of the Company are authonsed to determine the remuneration of the auditors

§ THAT, m substitution for all subsisting authorities to the extent unused, the directors of the Company be and are hereby
generally and uncondibionally authorised, in accordance with section 551 of the Compares Act 2006, to exercise all the
powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any secunty
mnto shares 1in the Company (“Rights”) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,799,926 during the period commencing
on the passing of this resolution and expiring on the fifth anniversary of the date of the passing of this resolution (unless
previously revoked, varied, renewed or extended by the Company 1n general meeting), but so that this authority shall
allow the Company to make before the expiry of this authority offers or agreements which would or might requure shares
to be allotted or Rights to be granted after such expury and the directors of the Company shall be entitled to allot shares or
grant Rights pursuant to any such offers or agreements as if the authority conferred by this resolution had not expired

9 THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 8 set out 1n the notice of this meeting, the directors of the Company be and are
hereby empowered, pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Comparues Act 2006 {the "Act”) to allot equuty securities (as
defined 1n section 560 of the Act) mcluding the grant of rights to subscribe for or to convert any security mto shares of
the Company, for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 9 set out in the notice of thus meefing, and to
sell equty securnities held by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if sectron 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any
such allotment and sales of equity secunties, provided that this power shall be linited to

{a) the allotment of equuty securitres up to an aggregate normnal amount representing 10 per cent of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) pursuant to one or more offers for subscription,

{b) the allotinent of equuty securitzes up te an aggregate norminal amount representing 10 per cent of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from tune to time which may be 1ssued at a discount to NAV
pursuant to any dividend remnvestment scheme operated by the Company, and

{c} the allotment of equuty securities (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above) up to an aggregate
nomunal amount representing 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company {excluding treasury shares)
from time to tume whuch may be at a discount to NAV, and

n each case where such proceeds of 1ssue may be used to purchase shares in the Company and the power conferred by
this resolution shall expire on the date faling 15 menths after the date of the passing of this resolution (unless previously
revoked, varied, renewed or extended by the Company in general meeting) or, 1f earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2013, except that the Company may, before such expiry, make offers

or agreements which would or mught require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors of the
Company shall be entitled to allot equity securthies pursuant to any such offers or agreements as if the power conferred
by this resolution had not expired

45



Notice of Annual General Meeting

10 THAT n substrtution for the Company’s exasting authority to make market purchases, the Company be and hereby 1s
empowered to make market purchases within the meamng of section 693(4) of the Companies Act 2006 (the *Act”) of
ordinary shares of 10p each 1n the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) on such terms and in such manner as the
directors of the Company shall from time to time determine, provided that

(a)

{b)

(@

(e}

the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares which may be purchased shall not exceed 14 99% of the Company’s
Ordinary Shares in 1ssue at the date of the Annual General Meeting, excluding any Ordinary Shares held in treasury
(equivalent to 8,993,630 Ordinary Shares at 17 February 2012, the date of this Notice of Annual General Meeting),

the mmmum price which may be pawd for an Ordinary Share 15 the nomunal value thereof of 10 pence,

the maxumum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share 15 an amount equal to the higher of (1) an amount equal
to 105 per cent of the average of the rmuddle market quotation for an Ordinary Share taken from the London Stock
Exchange daily official hst for the five busmess days immediately preceding the day on which such Ordinary Share 15
to be purchased, and (n) the amount stipulated by Article 5(1} of the Buyback and Stabrhisation Regulation 2003,

the authonty conferred by this resolution shall expire on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing of
thas resolution or, if earher, the conclusion of the annual general meeting to be held 1n 2013, unless such authonty 1s
renewed prior to such time, and

the Company may make a contract to purchase Ordinary Shares under the authority conferred by this resolution
prior to the expiry of such authonty which wall or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such
authonty and may make a purchase of such Ordinary Shares pursuant to such contract as f the power conferred
by thus resolution had not expired

11 THAT a general meeting (other than an annual general meeting) may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice,
provided that thus authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

By Order of the Board

1SIS EP LLP

{ompany Secretary
Baronsmead V(T 3 plc
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

17 February 2012
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No Director has a service contract with the Company

To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and for the purposes of the determunation by the Company of the
number of votes they may cast), members must be registered 1n the Register of Members of the Company at 6 00 pm
on 5 Aprit 2012 (or mn the event of any adjournment, 48 hours before the time of the adjourned meeting) Changes to
the Register of Members of the Company after the relevant deadhne shall be disregarded 1n determinuing the nghts of any
person to attend and vote at the meeting

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1s entitled to appomnt a proxy or proxaes to attend, speak and vote
on his or her behalf A proxy need not also be a member, but must attend the meeting to represent you Details of how
to appomnt the Chawrman of the meeting or another person as your proxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes
to the proxy form If you wish your proxy to speak on your behalf at the meeting you will need to appomt your own
choice of proxy {not the Charman) and gve your mstructions directly to them

To appoint more than one proxy, an additional proxy form(s) may be obtained by contacting the Company s registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC, helpline on 0870 703 0137 or you may photocopy the proxy form Please indicate
n the box next to the proxy holder’s name, the number of shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your
proxy Please also indicate by ticking the box provided, if the proxy mstruction 1s one of multiple mstructions being

given All forms must be signed and should be returned together 1n the same envelope

A reply paid form of proxy 1s enclosed with Shareholders’ copies of this document To be valid, 1t should be lodged with
the Company’s registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavihons, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZZ so as
to be recerved not later than 10 30 am on 5 April 2012 or, 48 hours before the time appointed for any adjourned meeting
or, m the case of a poll taken subsequent to the date of the meeting or adjourned meeting, so as to be received no later
than 24 hours before the time appomted for taking the poll

A person authonsed by a corporation 15 entitled to exercise {on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as the
corporation could exercise if it were an indivadual member of the Company On a vote on a resolution on a show of
hands, each authonsed person has the same voting rights as the corporation would be entitled to On a vote on a
resolution on a poll, 1if more than one autheorised person purports to exercise a power mn respect of the same share

(a) If they purport to exercise the power 1n the same way as each other, the power 1s treated as exercised 1n that way, or
(b} If they do not purport to exercise the power 1n the same way as each other, the power 1s treated as not exercised

Any person receiving a copy of this Notice as a person nommated by a member to enyoy information rights under
section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 (a ’Normunated Person’’) should note that the provisions in Notes 3 and 4

above concermung the appomntment of a proxy or proxies to attend the meeting 1n place of a member, do not apply to

a Nomunated Persen as only Shareholders have the right to appoint a proxy However, a Nominated Person may have

a right under an agreement between the Nominated Person and the member by whom he or she was nominated to be
apponted, or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the meeting If a Nominated Person has no such proxy
appomtment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may have a nght under such an agreement to give instructions
to the member as to the exercise of voting rights at the meeting

Nominated persons should also remember that their main point of contact in terms of their investment in the Company
rernams the member who nominated the Nominated Persen to enjoy information rights (or, perhaps the custodian or
broker who admimsters the investment on thewr behalf) Nomunated Persons should continue to contact that member,
custodian or broker (and not the Company) regarding any changes or queries relating to the Normninated Person's personal
details and interest in the Company (including any admurustrative matter) The only exception to this 1s where the
Company expressly requests a response from a Nominated Person

at
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9 Appowmtment of a proxy will not preclude a member from subsequently attending and voting at the meeting should the

member subsequently decide to do so A member can only appomnt a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes
and the notes to the proxy card The termination of the authonty of a person to act as a proxy must be notified to the
Company in wnting Amended instructions must be recerved by Computershare Investor Services PLC by the deadline for
receipt of proxies

Should a member wash to appomnt a proxy electromcally, such proxy appomtment must be registered electromucally at
www eproxyappomtment cormn, so as to be recexved not later than 10 30 am on 5 Apnl 2012 or 48 hours before the time
appointed for any adjourned meeting or, mn the case of a poll taken subsequent to the date of the meeting or adiourned meeting,
s0 as to be recaved no later than 24 hours before the fime appomnted to take the poll To vote electrorucally, you will be asked to
provide the Control Number, Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) and PIN, details of which are contamned mn the personalised
proxy card enclosed This 1s the only acceptable means by which proxy instructions may be submitted electrorucally

10 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by uhlising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service

may do so for the meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by utihsing the procedures described in the CREST manual,
whuch 15 available to download from the Euroclear website (wwwv euroclear com/CREST) CREST personal members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appomnted a voting service provider(s), should
refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on thewr behalf

In order for a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message {(a '’‘CREST
Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated 1n accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limuted’s specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described 1n the CREST manual The message must
be transmutted so as to be received by the Issuer’s agent (3 RA50) by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments
specified 1n note 5 above For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the
timestamnp applied to the message by the CREST applications host) from which the 1ssuers agent 1s able to retrieve the
message by enqury to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that Euroclear
UK & Ireland Lumnited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system
timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 15 the responsibility
of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or
has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 15 fransmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular
tune In this connection, CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sechons of the
CREST manual concermung practical hmitations of the CREST system and timungs

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out 1n Regulation 35(5) of the
Uncertificated Securthes Regulations 2001

11 As at 16 February 2011 the Company’s 1ssued share capital consists of 67,619,851 Ordinary Shares of which 7,622,317

are held in Treasury The total number of voting rights in the Company 1s 59,997,534

12 A copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting and the information requuired by Section 311A Companies Act 2006 1s

included on the Company’s website, www baronsmeadvct3 co uk
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13 Any electronic address provided either mn this Notice or 1n any related documents (including the form of proxy) may not

14

15

be used to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

Section 319A of the Companies Act 2006 requires the directors to answer any question rased at the AGM whuch,
relates to the business of the meeting, although no answer need be given {a) if to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation of the meeting or mvolve disclosure of confidential nformatton, (b) if the answer has already been given on
the Company’s website, or (c) if it 15 undestrable i the best mterests of the Company or the good order of the meeting

Members satisfying the thresholds 1n section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish

a statement on 1ts website sething out any matter relating to (a) the audit of the Company's accounts (including

the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting, or (b) any
crrcumstances contected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the last Annual General Meeting,
that the members propose to raise at the meeting The Company cannot requure the members requesting the publication
to pay its expenses, Any statemnent requuired to be placed on the website must also be sent to the Company’s auditors no
later than the time 1t makes 1ts statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required to publish on its website

By attending the meeting, members and thewr proxies and representatives are understoed by the Company to have agreed
to recerve any communications relating to the Company’s shares made at the meeting

Under sechions 338 and 338A Comparues Act 2006, members meeting the threshold requirements in those sections have
the right to require the Company

(1) to grve, to members of the Company enfitled to receive notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution which may
properly be moved and 1s intended to be moved at the meeting, and/or

{u) to mclude in the busiess to be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a proposed resolution) which may
be properly included 1n the business

A resolution may properly be moved or a matter may properly be mcluded in the business unless

(a) (in the case of a resolution only) it would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of mnconsistency with any
enactment or the company’s constitution or otherwise),

(b} 1t 1s defamatory of any person, or
(c) 1t 1s frivolous or vexatious

Such a request may be 1n hard copy form or in electroruc form, and must :dentify the resolution of which notice 1s to

be given or the matter to be included 1n the business, must be authorised by the person or persons making it, must be

received by the Company not later than six weeks before the meeting, and (1n the case of a matter to be included in the
business only) must be accompanied by a statement sething out the grounds for the request







Shareholder Information and Contact Details

The Board has a policy of regular and open commumcation with shareholders based around quarterly statutory reporting

Electromuc communicahion was ntroduced following new legislation i the 2006 Companies Act and the Baronsmead VCT 3's
website 1s www baronsmeadvct3 co uk

The Manager for Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 1s ISIS EP LLP

For mformation on asset allocations, dividend pohicies, iInvestment process, DRIP mechanism, share price movements, the share
price discount and seling shares please contact

By email rmichael probin@isisep com , margaret barff@iwsisep com
8y telephone Michael Probin 020 7506 5796, Margaret Barff 020 7506 5630
Internet www 1sisep com

For comparative performance data of Baronsmead VCT and other generalist VCT5 please visit the AIC performance statistics
page at www thearc co uk/statistics-publications

The Registrar for Baronsmead VCT 3 1s Computershare Investors Services PLC
To change the details held by Computershare in respect of your sharehelding, including change of address, bank account
details, joinung the DRIE, please contact them as follows

Baronsmead sharcholder helpline 0870 703 0137
(calls charged at geographtical and national rates)

The Baronsmead shareholder helpline 15 available on UK business days between Monday and Friday, 8 30am to 5pm If
you wish to speak to someone please press ‘0’ The automated self-service system 1s available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
You will need your Shareholder Reference Number (SRN), which for secunty reasons you should always keep confidential
and 1s available on your share certificate and dividend tax voucher, m order to

» confirm the latest share price

+ confirm your current share holding balance

« confirm payment history

» order a Change of Address, Dividend Bank Mandate or Stock Transfer Form

Managing online your own shareholding via the Investor Centre www investorcentre co uk

Computershare’s secure website, Investor Centre, enables shareholders to manage thewr shareholding online Using your SRN
you will be able to do the following

¢ Holding Enquiry - view balances, values, history, payments and remvestments

s Payments Enquiry - view your dividends and other payment types

e Address Change - change your registered address

s Bank Detalls Update — choose to receive your dividend payments directly into your bank account instead of by cheque

s e-Comms sign-up — choose to recerve email notification when your shareholder commurncations become avalable mnstead of
paper communcations

= Qutstanding Payments — reissue payments using our online replacernent service
« Downloadable Forms — including dividend mandates, stock transfer, dividend reinvestment and change of address forms
» By email — web quenes@computershare co uk
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Shareholder Information and Contact Details

Share Price

The Company’s ordinary shares are histed on the London Stock Exchange The mud-price of the Company’s shares 1s given
daily m the Financal Times in the Investment Comparues section of the London Share Service Share price information can
also be obtamned from the link on the Company's website and many financial websites

Trading Shares

The Company s shares can be bought and sold in the same way as any other quoted company on the London Stock
Exchange via a stockbroker As buying and seling exasting shares mn VCTs 1s complex, Shareholders should seek to trade
shares on a “best executicn” basis if appropriate

The marketmakers mn the shares of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc are
Matrix Corporate Capital LLP 020 3206 7000
Singer Capital Markets Limited 020 3205 7500
wWinterflood Securtties Lamited 020 3400 0251

Financial Calendar

11 April 2012 Annual General Meeting
August 2012 Announcement of interum results and posting of half-yearly report
February 2013 Announcement of final results for year to 31 Decernber 2012

Additional Information

The information provided 1n thas report has been produced n order for shareholders to be informed of the activities of the
Company durnng the period 1t covers 1SS EP LLP does not give investment advice and the naming of companies 1n this report
1s not a recommendation to deal in them

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 15s managed by 1515 EP LLP whach 1s Authorised and regulated by the FSA Past performance 1s not
necessarily a guide to future performance Stock markets and currency movements may cause the value of investments and
the income from them to fall as well as nse and investors may not get back the amount they onginally invested Where
investments are made 1n unqueted secunties and smaller companies, thewr potential volatihiy may increase the risk to the
value of, and the income from, the mvestment




Corporate Information

Directors Registrars and Transfer Office

Anthony Townsend (Charrman)t Computershare Investor Services PLC

Andrew Karney?
Gilhan Nott OBE*
lan Orrock

Secretary
1SIS EP LLP

Registered Office
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

fnvestment Manager
ISIS EP LLP

100 Wood Street

London EC2V 7AN

FPPE LLP (listed mnterest bearing securities only)
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

Investor Relations
Michael Probin
020 7506 5796

Registered Number
04115341

# Chairman of the Normination Commuttee and Chairman of the

Management Engagement and Remuneration Committee
t Sentor Independent Director
* Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Warning to Shareholders

PO Box 82

The Pavihons
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 627
Tl 0870 703 0137

Brokers

Matrix Corporate Capital LLP
One Vine Street

London W1J 0AM

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Saltire Court

2.0 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Solicitors

Norton Rose LLP

3 More London Riverside
London SE1 2AQ

VCT Status Adviser

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

Website

www baronsmeadvct3 co uk

Many comparues are aware that theirr shareholders have received unsclicited phone calls or correspondence concerrung
investment matters These are typically from overseas based “‘brokers’’ who target UK shareholders offering to sell them
what often turn out to be worthless or high rnisk shares in US or UK investments They can be very persistent and extremely
persuasive Shareholders are therefore advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or
offers for free company reports

Please note that 1t 15 very unhkely that either the Company or the Company Registrar, Computershare, would make
unsolicited telephene calls to shareholders and that any such calls would relate only to official decumentation already
circulated to shareholders and never 1n respect of investment “adwvice”

If you are 1n any doubt about the veracity of an unsohcited phone call, please call either the Company or the Registrar at the
telephone numbers provided on page 50
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